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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ARSHIYA CENTRAL FITWZ LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and preséntation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2015;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.
Emphasis of Matter

The company is unable to commence business pending transfer of land as explained in Note
No.12.

Despite the same, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis on the
assumption that the company shall be able to acquire infrastructure and commence
business.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; )

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W
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MUKUL M. PATEL S s
Partmer

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15 May, 2015



Annexure to the Independent Auditors” Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2015, we

report that:

iii.

iv.

V.

Vil

The Company does not have any fixed assets. Therefore, the requirements of Clause
3(i) of the Order are not applicable.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business for the purchase fixed assets and sale
of services. We have not noticed any major weaknesses in the internal control
system during the course of audit.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant
provision of the Companies Act 2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by
the Central Government of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
books and records as produced before us, in our opinion, there is no delay in
payment of tax deducted at source by the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
& P &
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us there were no
amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Lducation and
Protection Fund by the Company. Hence clause 3(vii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.



viii.

1X.

X1.

Xii.

The Company’s accumulated losses have not exceeded 50% of its net worth. The
Company has incurred cash losses both in the current as well as in the preceding financial
year.

The Company did not have any dues to banks, financial institution and
debenture holder during the year. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given guarantee for loan taken by others from banks or financial institutions.
Hence, provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken any term loan during the year and hence, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and considering the size and nature of Companies
operations, no fraud of material significance on or by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W
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Mukul M. Patel
Partner

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date; 15" May, 2015.



- ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

(Amount in %)

Particula Not As at 31st March As at 31st March
. ey 2015 2014
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS _
(a) Share Capital 4 21,38,40,230 21,38,40,230
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 70,67,04,523 70,67,97,392
2. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other Current Liabilities 6 9,84,103 10,08,132
Total 92.15,28,856 92,16,45,754
II. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Long-Term Loans and Advances 7 92,15,06,549 92,16,19,404
2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 22,307 22,307
(b) Other Current Assets 9 = 4,043
Total 92,15,28.850 92.16,45,754
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Notes on Financial statements ltol6

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 107556W
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Mukul Patel

Partner

Membership No. 32489
Place: Mumbai

Date: 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Nauar thoudis

—

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN No.00613576
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Ranjit Ray

Director
DIN No

03341453




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2015

Particulars

INCOME:
Income from Operations
EXPENDITURE:
Other Expenses
Total Expenses
Loss Before Tax And Exceptional It.em
Exceptional [tem

Loss For the Year

Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of ¥ 10 each
Basic & Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
Motes on Financial statements

As per our report of even date
For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 107556W

Mukul Patel
Fartner W\ /s
Membership No., 32489 ' Fy aCes
Place: Mumbai i
Tate: 15th May, 2015

(Amounit in ¥)
For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st
Notes March 2015 Mareh 2014
10 88,826 70,298
88,826 70,298
(88,826) (70,298)
11 4,043 1,16,25,148
{92,869) (1,16,95,446)
(0.004) (0.547)
3
Itol6
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited
- Aoy
_—
Navnit Choudhary Ranjit Ray
Director Director
DIN No.00613576 DIN No.03341433




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Cash Flow statement for the vear ended 31st March 2015

{Amount im ¥)

For the year ended | For the year ended 31st

31st March, 2015 March, 2014

Particulars
CASIT FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Loss before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (92,869) (1,16,95_,446)
Capital Expenditure Write off - 116,25 148
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (92,869) (70,298)
Adjusted for:

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities {24,029) (2,23,944)

Decrease/(Increase) in Non-Current Assets 1.16,898 (98,43_829)
Net Cash (used in) Operating Activities - 95,49,586.53

CASI FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Unsecured Loan
Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B)

COMPONENTS OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Opening balance of of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

= (1,00,04,330)

- (1,00,04,330)

. (4,54,743)
22,307 4,77.,050
22,307 22,307

Note: The cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method™ set out in the Accounting Standard 3 " Cash Flow

Statement” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

As per our report of even date
For M. A, Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Iirm Registration No. 107556W

Mukul Patel . ®/ :
Partner

Membership No. 32489
Place: Muimbai
Date: 13th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

-lm-wrumdh

Navnit Choudhary Ranjit Ray
Director Director
DIN No.006 13376 DIN No.03341433
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ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

1. Corporate Information
The Company was incorporated on June 21, 2008 with the object of setting up Free Trade
Warehousing Zones and to carry on such other related activities. The Company was forinerly
known as "Arshiya Central Logistics Infrastructure Limited" and its name has been changed
to "Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited".

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis of accounting and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
India (“Indian GAAP™) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards, as
specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as prescribed by the Central
Government and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results materialize/are known.

(i} Accounting for Taxes on Income

Taxes on Income are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard — 22 on
“Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS-22) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Tax expenses comprise both
Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to/recovered from the lax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred Tax Assets
and Liabilities are recognized, if required, for future tax consequence attributable to timing
difference between taxable income and accounting income that are measured at relevant
enacted tax rates,

(iii)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources, Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in the Notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statement.

(iv) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed and
disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent
shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(v) Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard

3 on Cash Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company.

(vi)  Accounting policies not specifically referred to herein are in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the Cnmpany.




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March 2015

(Amount in ¥)

As at 31st March

o As at 31st March
Particulars 3015 2014
4. Share Capital
Authorised
2,50,00,000 (previous year 2,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 25,00,00,000 25,00,00,00 @
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
2,13,84.023 (previous year 2,13,84,023) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 21,38.40.230 21,3840230

Total 21,38,40,230 21,38,40,230
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
Number . Rs. Number Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,13.84.023 21,38,40.230 2,13,84,023 21,38,40.230
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the close of the year 2,13,54,023 21,38,40,230 2,13,84,023 21,38,40,230

{b) Terms/rights attached to (he equity shares

The Company has only ene class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/ per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends to the shareholders who are holding the shares on record date which is

subject o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

I the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company in the

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders after distribution of all preferenual amounts,

{c) Shares held by Holding Company

Name of Share Holder As at 31st March As at 31st March
2015 2014
1,10,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up. Out of cquity shares 1,10,49,400 equity 11,05,00,000 11,05,00,000

shares are held by the Holding Company namely Arshiya Limited and for 600 equity shares
holding company is the beneficial owner.

Total

11,05,00,000

11,05,00,000

() Dretails of Shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the agpregate shares in

the Company

As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
Mame of Share Holder No of Equity %o Holding in the | No of Equity shares % Holding in the
shares held class held class
Arshiya Limited 1,10,50,000 52% 1,10,50,000 52%
Arshiva Hong Kong Limited 1,03,34,023 48% 1,03,34,023 48%
Total 2,13,84,023 100% 2,13,84,023 100%




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Notes to linancial statements for the vear ended 31st March 2015

{Amount in T)

Particulars As ar 31st March As at 31st March
2015 2014

5. Reserve & Surpluy

Security Premium

Opening Balance T1,88,63.013 T1.8863015

Add: Addition during the year - <

Closing Balance 71,88,63.015 71,88,63,01 5

Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit & loss

{Jpening Balance (1,20,65,623) (3,70,177

Loss for the year (92,869) (1,16.95,446)

Closing Balance (1,21,58,492) (1,20,65,623)
70,67,04,523 70,67,97.392

6. Other Current Liabilities

Other Creditors (Refer Note No,15) 084 103 951,423

Statutory Dues = 56,709

984,103 10,08,132

7. Long Term Loans & Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Advances to Holding Company for purchase of Land
(Refer Note No. 12)

91,15,06,549 92,16,19,404

§. Cash and Bank Equivalents

Ll
Balances with hanks 22,307 22,307
12,307 22,307
9. Other current Assets

Taxes Receivable = 4,043
& 4,043

92,15,06.549

92,16,19.404

Y%




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March 2015

Particulars

For the Year ended
Ist March 2015

For the Year ended
Mst March 2014

10, Other Expenscs

[Rates and Taxes

37,647 5841
legal and Professional Charges 18,500 16,854
Auditors Remuneration -
Audit Fees 22472 20,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 10,208 27.603
58,826 70,298
11. Exceptional [tems
TDS Receivable written off 4,043 a
Cupital Work in Progress written off . 11625148
4,043 1,16,25,148




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

12. The Company had given to Arshiya Limited (the holding company) advances for purchase of
land at Nagpur (Near Bori Village) which is notified as Free Trade and Werehousing Zone by
the Ministry of Commerce and Industry (Department of Commerce), Government of India.
Arshiya Limited is unable to transfer the land to the Company in view of it being not able to
obtain the consent from the lender to whom the said land has been given as security.

13. Earnings per Share (EPS)
(Amount in 3)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Net loss attributable to Shareholders (92,869) (11,695.446)
Average number of equity shares 21,384,023 21,384,023
Face value per share 10 10
Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.004) (0.547)

14. Related Party and its relationship

(i) Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party disclosures” as
given below (with whom transaction has been entered):

Name of Related Parties and Related Party relationship

Name of Related Parties Relationship
Arshiya Limited Holding Company
Navnit Choudhary Key Management
Ranjit Ray Personnel
Note: P

The Related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the
requirements of AS 18 and same have been relied upon by the auditors.

(ii) The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were as
follows,

(Amount in T)
Particulars Holding
Company
Loan Taken
Opening Balance NIL
(10,004,330)
| Expenses Incurred of behalf of company NIL
(278,483)
Loan repaid/Adjusted NIL
(10,282 .813)
Closing Balance NIL
L (NIL) |




ARSHIYA CENTRAL FTWZ LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Amount paid for Capital assets

Balance as on 01-04-2014 o 921,619,404
(931,463,233

Amount paid / Adjusted NIL

(NIL)

Expenses Incurred on behalf of Company/Amount Refunded 112,856

(9,843,289)

Closing Balance 921,506,549

(921,619,404)

Figures in bracket represents figures of last financial year.

15. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure, if any, relating to
amount unpaid as at the yearend together with interest payable as required under the said act have not

been given.

16. Previous year's figures have been reclassified to conform to current year’s classification.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M. A. Parikh & Co. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited

Firm Registration No; 107556W

Mot hoac s

Mukul Patel 1Y uf/ Navnit Choudhary
Partner N2 Nt Director

Membership No: 32489
Place: Mumbai
Date: 15" May, 2015

DIN No.00613576

Ranjit Ray
Director
DIN No.03341453
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

'I'Gl,
The Members of Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 315t March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from malerial misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2015;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that
date;
and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of Matters

1. The Company continues to be under financial stress due to non-generation of adequate
revenue as reflected by:
(i)  Outstanding Trade Receivable of Rs. 15,03,43,698
(ii) Substantial Creditors remaining outstanding to be paid.
(iif) Unpaid employees dues of Rs. 66,25,620
(iv) Tax Deducted at Source of Rs. 13,22,30,340

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a “Going Concern” basis as
referred to in note no. 29 of the Financial Statements.

2. Further to the above, we draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

(i)  Note No. 31 Re: Tax Deducted at Source.
(i)  Note No. 37 Re: Balance confirmations
(ii) Note No. 40 Re: Intercompany Advances/Loans/Guarantees granted/ received.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

{ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
...Firm Reg. No. 107556W

i

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15t May, 2015
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iv.

Vil.

Annexure to the Independent Auditors” Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors ‘Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we report that :

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause 3(iii) of
the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the purchase fixed assets and sale of services. We have
not noticed any major weaknesses in the internal control system during the course of
audit.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant provision of
the Companies Act 2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is operating from a Special Economy Zone and hence, is exempt from
maintenance of cost records as prescribed under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory
dues, except, tax deducted at source of Rs.10,00,04,974/- which is outstanding as of the
year-end for a period of more than six months from their due dates of payment.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us there were no amounts
which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company. Hence clause 3(vii)(c) ofthe Order is not applicable.




V1ii.

IX.

Xii.

The accumulated losses of the Company are more than 50% of its net worth. The Company
has not incurred cash losses during the year and it has incurred cash losses in the
immediately preceding financial year.

The Company has not taken any loan from banks, financial institution and has not
issued any debentures during the year. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions. Hence,
provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

According to information and explanations given to us, and on examination of the
balance sheet and other records, during the year, part disbursement of term loan was
received by the Company, which has been applied for the purpose for which the loan
was obtained.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and considering the size and nature of the Company’s
operations, no fraud of material significance on or by the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

. 2

Mukul M. Patel
Partmer

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15t May, 2015.



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

I. Equity And Liabilities

1. Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings
(b) Long-term Provisions

3. Current Liabilities

(a) Short-term Borrowing
(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liabilities
{d) Short-term Provisions

Total

II. Assets
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(ii) Intangible Assets
(iii)Intangible Assets under development

(b) Long-term Loans and advances

2. Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables
{b) Cash and Bank balances
(c) Short-term Loans and advances

Total

Summeary of Significant Accounting Policies

See accompanying notes to the Financial
Statements

As per our Report of even date attached
For M.A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 107556W

. - -ﬂ_\"\._ (4
b f "-\_ =
Mukul Patel 4

Partner
Mem. No. 32489 =

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 15th May, 2015

Notes

Ao
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3to 4l

As at

31st March 2015

(Amount in )

As at
31st March, 2014

3,78,71,200

(1,21,43,31,777)

3,78,71,200.00

(1,27,97,03,254]

81,87,88,890 56,66,66,667
6,56,340 8,24,214
10,09,500 95,60,891
20,58,13,483 27,96,49,784
62,14,99,132 49,69,33,089
39,02,764 14,14,29,248
47,52,09,531 25,32,31,839
8,01,909 30,98,683
35,51,237 1,14,746

- 39,45,700
27,70,00,000 20,00,000
15,03,43,698 11,45,82,018
6,15,508 86,79,467
4,28,97,178 12,08,11,225
47,52,09,531 25,32,31,839

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Supply Chain Management
Private Limited

Ajay S. Mittal
Director
DIN : 00226355

'LIQ..J""';'“ DM,
______#

_,_—-—-
Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Income
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Revenue

Expenditure
Operating Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses
Other Expenses
Finance Cost
Depreciation / Amortization
Total Expenses

Profit(Loss) for the year before exceptional item
Less: Prior Period Adjustment

Less: Exceptional Items

Profit (Loss) before Tax

Tax Expenses

Current Tax

Prior year Tax Adjustments

MAT Credit Reversed

Deferred Tax

Profit (Loss) for the year

Earnings per Equity Share
Basic and Diluted (in ¥ )
{Refer Note No: 27}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached
For M.A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 107556W |

Mulkul Patel
Partner
Mem. No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 15th May, 2015

~tement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2015

Notes Year Ended
31st March 2015

(Amount in ¥)
Year Ended

31st March 2014

16 68,51,37,199 53,46,66,860
17 2,40,06,948 58,11,621
70,91,44,147 54,04,78,481

18 49,54,82,306 53,94,06,796
19 2,85,61,812 4,84 88 385
20 1,28,01,685 2,08,81,786
21 16,82,98,531 16,36,57,698
11 11,79,060 11,53,407
70,63,23,394 78,25,88,072
28,20,753 (24,21,09,591)

2 1,49,94,45,590

22 (75,74,794) 25,85,84,602
1,03,95,547 (2,00,01,39,783)

15,05,000 s

(5,81,07,853) 1,58,12,336

: 12,41,76,994

- 7,78,89,363
6,69,98,400 (2,21,80,18,476)

17.69 (1,381.09)

3to4l

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Supply Chain Management

Private Limited

Ajay S. Mittal
Director

DIN : 00226355 e,

wWautnapucs iy

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Adjusted for:

Diepreciation

Finance Cost

Reversal of Revenue of Prior years

Bad debts written off

Provision [or Doubtful Debts

Interest Income

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Amortised Ancillary Borrowing Cost written off
CWIF Written off

interest on Delayed Payment of TDS Written back
Excess Provision Written Back

Employes Due Written back

Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)/ Loss
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjusted for:

Increase/{Decrease] in Provisions
Increase/{Decrease} in Current Liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances
{Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances
(Increase) /Decrease in Trade Payables
{Increase) { Decrease in Trade Receivables

Cash from f(used in) Operating Activities

Taxes Paid - (n=1

Net Cash from /|used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Received
Net Cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Issue of Shares

Short Term Loan Availed / (Repaid) (net)

Term Loan Availed / (Repaid) (net)

Finance Cost

Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities

Effect of Foreign Exchange differences on Translation of Foreign
Net Increass/(Decrease| in Cash & Cash Equivalent{A+B+C)

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent{A+B+C|

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

Note:

{Amount in T)

For the Year Ended

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

1,03,95,547 {2,00,01,39,783)
11,79,060 11,53,407
16,82,98,531 14,33,27,561
= 1,49,85,26,005
90,97,784 25,85,84 602
5,74,079 1,40,04,829
(16,71,012) {1,34,790)
N 3,38,769
. 2,03,30,137
= 9,19,585
(1,34,57,528) -
(1,26,19,493) (89,212}
32,15,050) :
(46,13,638) 9,31,093

15,39,68,280

(6,22,47,797)

{6,90,46,091) (22,24,863)
(27,28,476) 6,38,11,556
{27,50,00,000) -

7,79,14,045 12,062
(7,38,36,302) (44,64,12,635)
{4,02,45,826) 4,73,69,667
(22,89,74,370) {39,96,92,030)
: i2,42,61,435)
{22,89,74,370) {42,39,53,465)
16,71,012 1,349,790
16,71,012 1,34,790

: 52.47.07,175
(85,51,391) [7,56,239)
37,71,22,223 5,00,00,000
(14,93,31,433) (14,33,27,561)
21,92,39,399 43,06,23,375
(11,72,259)

{80,63,959) 56,32,441
86,79,467 30,47,026
{80,63,959) 56,32,441
6,15,508 86,79,467

1} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method'as set out in Accounting

Standard notified under Companies Act, 2013.

2) Previpus Year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current years'

classification.

This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date,
For M.A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Patel : (mg 1)+ 5J
Partner '-.\ ¢ ol

Mem. No. 329489

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Supply Chain Management
'rivate Limited

Ajay S. Mittal AR
Director ALy AN
DIN : 00226355 fia]

O DU
_—
Navnit Choudhary

Director

DIN : 00613576




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

No

1.

tes to financial statements for the yvear ended 31st March, 2015

Corporate Information

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited (the Company) is a privately
held company domiciled i India and was incorporated under the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and it is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited.

The Company is registered as a service unit in Free Trade Warehousing Zone
(FTWZ) of Arshiya Limitcd, at Panvel, Maharashtra and in FTWZ of Arshiya
Northern FTWZ Limited, at Khurja, Uttar Pradesh.

The Company provides end to end supply and demand chain solutions to its
Customers.

A. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements e¢re prepared under the historical cost convention and
accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with  Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP”) and are in conformity with
mandatory accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, as specified prescribed under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).

B. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, as of the dete of financial statements and the reported amount of
revenue and expenses for the year. The difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or
materialized.

FixedAssets

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of
cenvat credit availecl) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any. All costs inciuding financing costs till commencement of commercial
operation are capitalised,

(b} Intangible Fixed 2Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses. The capitalised cost of software includes license fees,
cost of implementation and system integration services. These costs are
capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which related software is
implemented. RRAGER



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to financial stateinents for the year ended 31st March, 2015

e

iv.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The costs of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried
at cost comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable
interest.

Depreciation and Amcrtization
(a) Tangible Assets:
Depreciation or fixed assets is provided as per Schedule II of the

Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Intangible Assets
(i} Software (intangible asset, other than below), is amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of three to six years from the date of its
implementation based on management’s estimate of useful life over
which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

(1) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset)
including expenditure on implementation is be amortised from the year
of implementation over a period of ten years based on management’s
estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from
its use.

Revenue Recognition
(a) Revenue for Storage and Management fees from customers is recognized on
an accrual basis.

(b) Revenue from Handling and Transportation is based on Inward and
Outward movement of containerized cargo.

(c] Revenue from Value Added Services and other activities is recognised based
on completion of agreed contracted services.

(d) Interest and other income are accounted for on accrual basis except where
the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is accounted for on
receipt basis.

Foreign Currency Traasactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing
exchange rates on the date of the transaction. Realised gains and losses on
settlement of foreign. currency transactions are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. - A
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Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Neotes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are

translated at the year-end exchange rates and the resultant exchange
differences are recegnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include schemes such as provident fund, gratuity and leave
encashment entitlements.

(a)

Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

(b) Defined Bencfit Plan
The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan in respect of Gratuity. The scheme
1s managed by a Trust (Life Insurance Corporation of India). The liability for
the defined benefit plan is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation
carried out by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post-employment and other long
term benefits are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Other Employee Benefits
Liability for leave encashment entitlement is provided on the basis of
independent actuarizl valuation.

Leases

Operating lease

Assets taken on lease under which all risks and rewards of ownership are
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease
payments under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis
in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

Accounting for Taxes on Income

(a)

(b)

Provision for current tax is made, based on the tax payable under the
Income Tax Act, 16351.

Deferred tax is recognisced, subject to the consideration of prudence, on
timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent periods and measured using relevant enacted tax
rates. Deferred Tax assets are not recognized unless there are timing
differences, the reverzal of which will result in suffig_ig,z_}!;_.mcomc or there is



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
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es to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

(c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give
rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future tax
liability, is recognised as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence,
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to
the Company and the assets can be measured reliably.

Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying values of tangible and intangible assets for
any possible impairment at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is
recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average
number of common and diluted common equivalent shares outstanding during
the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a
present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the outflow of economic
benefits required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. Where no reliable
estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as contingent liability. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is also made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method as set out in
Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements which presents the cash flows
by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to are consistent with the generally
accepted accounting principles. 4;;1;‘,:_;;;&
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Heotes to Financial stotements for the year ended 5350 Wt vinh 2018
(Armount in T}
As at As5 at
31st March 2015 st March, 2014
3. Share Capital
Authiorised
40,00,000 (Previous Year 30,00,000) Equity Shares of © 10/- each 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up :
37,87,120 | Previous Year 37,687,120 | Equity Shares of T 10/- each [ully paid-up 3,78,71,200 3,78,71,200
Total 3,78,71,200 3,78,71,200
{u} Reconciliation of Equity shares cutstanding ot the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March, 2014
- Kumber 4 Number T
Balance at the beginning of the year B 47,87,120 | 3,78,71,200 16,00,000 1,60,00,000
Add : Issued during rhe Year - . 21,87,120 2,18,71,200
Balance at the close of the venr ar.er12, | 5,98,71,200 37,887,120 3,78,71,200

(b) Terms/rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share, The company declares and pays olvidends to the shareholders who are halding the shares on record date which is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of tha Company, the holders of equity shares will be sntitled to recelve remaining assets of the company in the proportion to the
number of eguity shares held by the sharehalders after distribution of all preferential amounts,

{c} Shares held by the Holding Company / Fellow Subsidiary

Asat
Name of the Sharcholder 31st March 2015 Sraralak N 018
Humbur Amount in ¥ Humber Amount in T
Arshiva Ligutad 33,08,333 3,30,83,330 33,08,333 3,30.83,330
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited -4, 78. 757 47.87.870 4, 78,787 47 87,870
37,587,120 3,78,71,200 37,87,120 3,78,71,200
Mote:-33.08,333 [ Previous Yerr 33 08,333 | Equis o5 6l 2 10/ cact: oL which, 5. 115,233 [Previous Year-33,08,333 | equity shares are held by the Holding
{|Company viz Arsbiva Limiled and balance 100 {Peeviais Year -100 ) gy she res heli! through declaration of beneticial interest as per Section B9 of the Companies

iRt 2013,

(d} Detwils of Shares held by the shareholders noliing tiore than 5% of the aggrepute shares in the Company

|

As ut 3lst March 2015 As ot 31st Mareh 2014
linme of the Shareholder ==
Numer % of Holding Number % of Holding
Arshiva Lunited 33.08,353 87.36% 33,08,333 47.36%
Arshiva Noithern FTWZ Limited +. 78, 7TAT 12.64% 478,787 12.6:4%
Total 37,87,120 100.00% 37,87,120 100.00%|




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st Muzch 2015

4. Reserves & Surplus
Becurities Premium
Opening Balance
Add : On Issue of Shares
Less: Utilised for Stamp duty & ROC Fees paid for Increase in
share capital
Closing Balance
Burplus/{Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Opening Ralance
Add; Profit{{Loss| for the year

Less: Adjustment for depreciation { Refer Note No, 32 |
Closing Balance

TOTAL
5. Long -Term Borrowings
Sacured
Term Loan - Others [Refer Note No - 9)
Total

The Term loan facility is secured by:

[Amount in T}
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

50,28,35,975 =
- 50,30,37 (00
- 2,01,625
50,28,35,975 50,28,35,975
[1,78,25,39,229) 43,54,79,247
6,69,98,400 (2,21,80,18,476)

{16,26,923) a

(1,71,71,67,752)

[1,78,25,39,229)

(1,21,43,31,777)

|1,27,97,03,254)

B1,87,88,890

56,66,66,667

51,87,88,890

56,66,66,667

5.1 Exclusive charge on all receivables and cash flow of the company, as limited to Panvel FTWZ business.

5.2 Corporate Guarantee of Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited for the facility extended (o the company.
5.3 Personal Guarantee of Promoters of Holding Company i.e. Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs.Archana Mittal,

3.4 Pledge of minimum 49% sharcholding of Arshiya Northen FTWZ Limited and Second charge on all Assets of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited,

3.5 Term Loan carries interest rate of 12% and 15.50% . On nen compliance of sanction terms within the stipulated period, 2% penal interest is payable

3.6 For matunily profile of secure Term Loan

5.6.[i] Refer Jong term maturities shown below

5.60.[ii] Refer current maturities of long term loan referred to in Note Ne, 0,

Maturity Profile as on 31-03-2015
Financial Year

2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19

Amount in ¥
40,83,33,333
53,33,33,333
23,00,00,000

3,54,55,557




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

6. Long Term Provision
Employee's Benefits - Leave Encashment
(Refer Note No : 23)
Total

7. Short Term Borrowings
(Unsecured)
Loan from Holding Company *
Loan from Fellow Subsidiary Company *
Total
* Interest Free Loan Repayable on Demand

8. Trade Payables
Trade Payables (Refer Note No : 30)

Total

9. Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan (Refer Note No : S}
Statutory Dues
Interest on Delayed Payment of TDS
Employees dues Payable
Provision for Expenses
Security Deposits
Advances from Customers
Total

10. Short -Term Provision
Provision for Employees related benefits
Others
Leave Travel Allowance
Provision for Taxes (Net of Taxes Paid)
Total

As at

31st March 2015

(Amount in ¥)
As at

31st March 2014

6,56,340 8,24,214
6,56,340 824,214
- 95,60,891
10,09,500 .
10,09,500 95,60,891

20,58,13,483

27,96,49,784

20,58,13,483 27,96,49,784
40,83,33,333 28,33,33,333
13,24,05,632 14,02,57,950
3,57,15,846 3,02,06,277
92,82,425 1,41,27,653
40,38,225 11,28,368
2,28,06,090 2,33,64,667
89,17,580 45,14 841
62,14,99,131 49,69,33,080
1,28,384 1,67,522
22,69,380 16,86,118
15,05,000 13,95,75,608
39,02,764 14,14,29,248
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Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

{Amount in T)
As at As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

12. Long Term Loans & Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security Deposits

With Holding Company 26,20,00,000 20,00,000
With Others 1,50,00,000 -
Total 27,70,00,000 20,00,000
13. Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Outstanding for period exceeding six month
Considered good 2,30,78,264 3,13,77,687
Considered doubtful 19,59,415 1,40,04,829
Less Provision for doubtful Debts (19,59,415) (1,40,04,829)
Other Debts
Considered good 12,72,65,434 8,32,04,331
Total 15,03,43,698 11,45,82,018
14, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 33,711 72,162
Balance with Banks 5,81,797 86,07,305
Total 6,15,508 86,779,467
15. Short -Term Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
Balances with Government Authorities
Tax deducted at source [Net of Provisions) 3,78,68,924 11,78,51,154
Gratuity Funded Balance (Net) 33,94,921 19,23,196
Trade Advance 5,36,245 -
Advance to Employees - 10,135,000
Other Advances (Refer Note Na. 33) 10,97,088 21,875
Total 4,28,97,178 12,08,11,225



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

16. Revenue From Operations

Sale of Services

Less: Discount\Rebate

17. Other Income
Interest

Total

Recovery of Managerial Remnueration
Acturial Gain on Gratuity Fund
Sundry Balances Written Back
Excess Provision Written Back
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) (Net)

18. Operating Expenses
Operating Expenses

19, Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and allowances

Contribution to Provident and other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

20. Other Expenses

Insurance Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Legal & Professional Fees

Bank Charges

Travelling And Conveyance
Eemuneration to Auditors

Audit Fees

Other services

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Miscellaneous Expenses
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

21. Finance Costs
Interest Expense

Total

Total

Total

Total

Interest on Delayed Pavinent of TDS

Other Borrowing Cost

Amortised Ancillary Borrowing Cost

22, Exeptional Items

Bad Debts Written Off
Interest on Delayed Payment of TDS Written back

Unpaid Balances Written back

Total

For the Year ended
31st Feb. 2015

(Amount in ¥)
For the Year ended
31st March 2014

68,51,37,199

53,51,66,860
5,00,000

68,51,37,199

53,46,66,860

16,71,012 1,34,790
p 1,67,81,902
14,71,725 (4,97,692)
. 35,05,549
1,26,19,493 89,212
82,44,718 (1,42,02,140)
2,40,06,948 58,11,621
49,54,82,306 53,94,06,796
49,54,82,306 53,94,06,796
2,75,31,464 4,77,38,228
8,77,488 7,40,106
1,52,859 10,051
2,85,61,812 4,84 88,385
11,361 12,14,889
5,34,105 1,17,476
20,11,500 17,04,794
18,85,047 24,26,349
42,07,845 40,12,161
8,00,000 5,00,000
: 3,50,000
5,74,079 1,40,04,829
27,77,748 52,12,519
) 3,38,769
1,28,01,685 2,98,81,786
14,82,60,866 12,24,85,539
1,90,37,665 2,08,42,022
10,00,000 :
. 2,03,30,137
16,82,98,531 16,36,57,698
90,97,784 25,85,84,602
(1,34,57,528) :
(32,15,050) 3
(75,74,794) 25,85,84,602




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Notes f¢ [inancial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

23. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15(Revised)-Employee Benefits.

The disclosures as required as per the revised AS 15 are as follows:

a. Defined Contribution plan

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the

Statement of Profit and Loss:

Employers' Contribution to Provident fund

[Includes Administrative Charges, EDLI charges and

Employers’' Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme, 1995 ]

Previous Year

%.8,34,528/ -

%.7,36,926/-)

|

. Defined Benefit Plan

The employee’s gratuity scheme is managed by a Trust (Life Insurance Corporation

of India).

The employees of the Company are also entitled to leave encashment benefit as per

the Company's policy.

I. Changes in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation:

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particulars tinfunded)
31st March 31stMarch | 31stMarch | 315t March
2015 2014 2015 2014
Defined Benefit Obligation 18,20,166 24,19,924 9,91,736 | 25,22,484
at beginning of Year
Current Service Cost 6,82,793 9,07,778 2,86,906 6,97,268 |
Interest Cost 1,69,093 1,83,594 67,916 2,01,799
Benetits Paid -- (3,72,115) | (5,21,343)| (18,42,734)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses | (15,91,503) (12,95,988) (40,491) | (5,18,282)
on Obligation
Liability Transfer fromn - 10,716 - 8,870
Group Company
Liability = Transfer to - (43,743) - (77,669)
Group Company
Closing Defined Benefit 10,80,549 18,20,166 7,84,724 9,91,736
Obligations
P4



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

II. Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Gratuity
Particulars 31st March | 31stMarch
2015 2014
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Year 37,43,362 | 41,15,477
Expected return 3,25,672 3,58,046
Benefits Paid -1 (3,72,115)
Actuarial Gains/(losses) o1 Plan Assets 4,06,436 | (3,58,046)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year | 44,75,470 | 37.,43,362

III.Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particulars SR
31=t March 31stMarch 31st March 31stMarch
2015 2014 2015 2014
Present  Value of (10,80,549) (18,20,166) (7,84,724) (9,91,736)
defined benefit
obligation
Fair wvalue of plan 44, 75,475 37,43,362 - NA
| assets
Plan Assets 33,94,921 19,23,195 (7,84,724) (9,01,736)
/ (Liability)

IV.Net employee Benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Leave Encashment
Particulars Cratuity (Mafunded)
31stMarch 31stMarch 31stMarch | 31stMarch
2015 2014 2015 2014
Current Service Cost 6,82,793 9,07,778 | 2,86,906 | 6,97,268
Intercst cost on benefit
obligation 1,69,093 1,93,594 67,916 2,01,799
Expected return on plan '
assets (3,25,672) (3,58,046) NA NA
Net actuarial
(Gains) /Loss recognized
in the year (19,97,939) (9,37,942) (40,491) | (5,18,282)
Net benefit expense/(gain) | (14,71,725) 3,14,331 3,80,785

(1,94,616)




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for 2%

V. Principal assumptions

vear ended 31st March, 2015

Gratuity Leave
Encashment(Unfunded)
Particulars 31st March 31stMarch | 31stMarch | 31stMarch
2015 2014 2015 2014

Discount rate 7.80% 9.29% 7.80% 9.29%
Expected rate of return on 9.00% 8.70% NA NA
Plan Assets
Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate 15.00% 10.00% 15.00% 10.00%

24. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in providing end to end supply and demand
chain solutions to its customers in FTWZ. In the opinion of the Company, the
entire business is governed by same set of risks and returns and hence, the same
has been considcred as representing a single primary segment. The Company
provides services within India and hence, doesn’t have any operations in economic
environments with different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered that the
Company is operating in single geographical segment.

25. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place and their

Relationship :

 Sr. No Name of Related Party . Relationship
I Arshiya Limited Holding Couwpany
2 Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
3 Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
- Mr. Ajay Mittal — Director (with effect from

28t August, 2014)
Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director
Mr. Ranjit Ray - Director

Key Management
Personnel (KMP)

=1 i

Welldone Software Consultancy Private Limited

Other Related Party

Note: The Related party relationships heve been determined by the management on the
basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by the

auditors.

A




Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

(ii) Summary of significant Related Party Transactions (as identified by the
Management) carried out in the ordinury course of business are as follows:
(Amount in )
Sr. Nature of Holding Fellow Other Key Total
No Transactions Company Subsidiary Related Managemen
Party t Personnel
1 Purchases of 33,46,35,555 2,04,51,613 -- == 35,50,83,168
Services (32,72,33,020) | (7,98,13,294) (—) (--) (40,70,46,314)
2 | Recovery of -- - == 2 -
Managerial {-=) {--) () | (1,67,84,402) (1,67,84,402)
Remuneration
paid in Previous
year
3 | Security Deposit 26,00,00,000 -- 1,50,00,000 -- 27,50,00,000)
Given (=-) ot {5l (==} (--)
4 | Corporate -- -— - e 21
Guarantee (1,00,00,00,000) (--) (--) (--) | (1,00,00,00,000)
Received
5 | Transfer of Emplovees Liability
(a) | Transfer From -- -- - -- --
(19,586) i) = (--) (19,586)
(b} | Transfer To -- -- -- -- --
(1,21,412) (--) (-] (--) (1,21,412)
6 | Equity Shares -~ - - - - |
Issued (40,99,99,920) | (11,49,08,88) (=) () | (5,24,90,88,800) |
7 | Loan Received -- 10,09,500 - = 10,09,500 |
(21,41,25.850) (--) (=) (--) (21,41,25,850)
8 | Loan Repaid (Net 9,560,891 -- -- - 49,17,27,797
of Reimbursement (21,48,82,089) (--) (--) {--) (21,48,82,089)
of Expenses)
Balance as at 31st March,2015
9 | Loan Payable - 10,09,500 -- - 10,09,500
(95,60,891) (--) (--) (95,60,891)
10 | Trade Payable 2,86,152 14,59,60,152 - - 14,61,55,304
(11,97,29,613) | (10,26,30,337) (--) == (22,23,59,950)
12 | Security Deposit 26,20,00,000 -1 1,50,00,000 -- 27,70,00,000
(20,00,000) (=) (-9 f-<} (20,00,000)
13 | Corporate 1,15,00,00,000 -- - 1,15,00,00,000
Guarantee Given | (1,15,00,00,000] {4 (--) | (1,15,00,00,000)
14 | Corporate 1,85,00,00,000 -- -- (1,85,00,00,000)
Guarantee (1,85,00,00,000) (=) (--) | (1,85,00,00,000)
Received

Note: Figures in brackets represent those of previous ye
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Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

26. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 19 - Leases

Operating Lease

The company has entered into agreements for allotment of pallet positions at
FTWZ Sai Village, Panvel, Maharashtra belonging to its Holding Company, Arshiya
Limited and at FTWZ, District Bulandshahar, Khurja, Uttar Pradesh belonging to
its Fellow Subsidiary, Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited.

(Amount in %)
Phitscline Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Lease Payments recognized in the Statement | 27,04,38,940 36,17,18,172
of Profit and Loss
Future Lease Payments
(a) Not later than one year. 27,30,10,685 37,89,00,000
(b) Later than one year but not later than | 11,50,03,279 38.80,13,964
five years
(¢) Later than five years. NIL NIL
Total of future lease payments. 38,80,13,964 76,69,13,964

27. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

(Amount in )

Year Ended Year Ended

SRttty 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax as per Statement 6,69,48,400 | (2,21,80,18,476)
of Profit & Loss
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 37,87,120 16,05,992
outstanding during the year
Face Value per Share 10 <10
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 317.68 <(1,381.09)

Income
Deferred Tax :

28. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on

Deferred Tax Assets consist of substantial amounis of carry forward losses and
unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, since the
availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the said benefits
can be set off is not possible to be ascertained with virtual certainty, the
Deferred Tax Assets have not been recognized as a measure of abundant

caution.



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Notes to financizl statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015
29. Going Concern Assumption.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going Concern”
basis in view of:

(a) The Company having turned the corner by reporting a profit before tax of Rs.
1,03,95,547 /-

(b) Increase in volume of business of the Company by providing services to the
clients in Free Trade Warehousing Zones(s) (FTWZ) at Panvel and Khurja,
owned by the Holding Company and a Fellow Subsidiary respectively;

(c) The future business prospects expected on account of Inland Container Depot
(ICD) being set up by a Fellow Subsidiary.

30. Details of dues to Micro Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the
MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has not received any intimation from “suppliers” regarding their
status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
and hence the disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end
together with interest payable as required under the said Act have not been given.

31. Tax Deducted at Source

During the year,

(a) The Company had deducted income tax at source (TDS) aggregating to
Rs.5,11,65,793/- during the earlier years from the amounts payable to
various parties. The Company has not paid the said TDS to the government
on assumption that such parties would have paid their income tax dues on
the income declared by them in the respective years. Accordingly, during the
year, the Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 5,11,65,793/- back to
the respective parties.

(b) The Company has written back an aggregate amount of Rs.1,34,57,527/-
representing interest on unpaid tax deducted at source provided in
earlier years on the premise that since the corresponding tax deducted is
not payable as mentioned in Note no. (a) above, interest thereon is not
payable.

32. Depreciation:
Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its
applicability for accounting periods commencing on or after 1lst April, 2014, the
Company has re-worked depreciaticnn with reference to the useful lives of fixed
assets prescribed by PART 'C' of Schiedule II to the Act. Where the remaining useful
life of asset is nil, the carrying amount of the assets after retaining the residual
value, as at 1st April, 2014 amounting to Rs. 16,26,923/- has been adjusted to the
balance of surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases the carrying



Arshiya Supply Chain Managem ot Private Limited

Noties to financial statements for

33.

w+oar ended 31st March, 2015

values have been depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets and
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. As a result the charge for
depreciation is lower by Rs. 74,015/- for the year ended 31st March 2015.

Other Advances include Rs.10,65,300/- being cash seized by the Income Tax
Department at the time of search on 13% June, 2014. The company shall be
lodging necessary claim {-r refund of the same as according to it:

(1) It was not a “person” under search under section 132(1) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.
(ii) The said cash on hand was.duly accounted for in its books of accounts

and tallied with balance on hand as on date of search.

34. Information pursuant to para 5(viii) of Revised Schedule VI of the Companies

Act, 2013

Foreign Currency transactions/balances of the Company are not hedged by
derivative instruments or otherwise. The details of foreign currency transactions
/balances of the Company are as follows:

. " Amount in Domestic
fisiiibniase Amount in Foreign Currency Curreney ]
As at 31st | As at 31st
As at 31st As at 31s
iy | e Warch | March 2015 | March 2014
Accounts usD 32,14,855 | 22,78,030 | 19,82,27,966 13,45,62,920
Receivable
| Accounts EURO 57,656 25,790 38,24,908 20,98,016

Receivable ' 1
Accounts Payable usD MIL | NIL NIL | NIL
Accounts Payable EURO NIL NIL NIL NIL
Security Deposit usD 34,715 46,555 21,40,553 27.56,495
Payable
Security Deposit EURO 3,609 10,657 2,39,435 8,66,931
Payable

35. Additional Information pursuant te Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013.

a. Earnings in Foreign Currency (On Accrual Basis)

{Amount in ¥)

Particulars

Vear Euded 31.63.2015

Vear Ended 31.03.2014

Income from FTWZ !
and related services

l

64,94,18,494

53,46,66,860




Arshiya Supply Chain Manage:: -n2¢ Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for ¢he vear ended 31st March., 2015

36. Contingent Liability not provided for in respect of:

37.

38.

39.

40,

(Amount in ¥)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31stMarch
2015 2014

Corporate Guarantee given to a non-banking | 1,15,00,00,000 | 1,15,00,00,000
finance company in respect of loan taken by
the Holding Company.

Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade
Payables and Other liabilities other than due from/to Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries
are subject to confirmation. Adjustraents, if any, shall be made in the accounts of
the year in which such differences arc accepted.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets, Non-Current Assets Loans
and Advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
least equal to the amounts at which they are stated in Balance Sheet. Provision
has been made for all known liabilities and the same is adequate and not in excess
of the amount considered reasonably necessary.

The Management has evaluated the recoverability aspects from it’s customers.
Based on such evaluation it has decided to write-off the irrecoverable amount of
Rs. 90,97,784 /- (Previous Year Rs. 25,85,84,602/-)

The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as regards inter Company advances/loans/guarantees granted/received
to/from group companies are not applicable, as the same are provided /received in
the normal course of busines‘s.



Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

41. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged, reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to those of current year’s presentation.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements.

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private
Firm Reg No: 107556W Limited

M Ajay S. Mittal
W Director

Mukul Patel @ . DIN : 00226355

Partner ) N Qagra AO M s
P ——

Navni;:. Choudhary
Place: Mumbai. Director
Date: 15% May. 2015 DIN : 00613576
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Arshiya Transport And Handling Limited.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying (inancial statements of ARSHIYA TRANSPORT AND
HANDLING LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%
March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those: Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

f': y

YUSUF BUILDING, 2no FLOOR, 4232, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI - 400 001.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 2850 - 22029187 - FAX :91-22-2287 4524 » E-MATL: maparikh@eth.net



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2015;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and
() in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of Matter
The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:

() The Company has been incurring cash losses, whereby the Net Worth has been
completely eroded. (Refer Note No. 17)

(b) Non generation of adequate revenue to ensure regular payment of expenses,
statutory dues inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source and repayment of loan from
Holding Company.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as
explained in Note no. 18 in view of the following:

(1) Amalgamation of the Company (Subject to Courts Approval) with fellow
subsidiary companies (Note no. 19).

(ii) Revival Plans proposed to be implemented by the Management to improve
the operations. (Note No. 20).

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of all these matters.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the order, to the extent applicable,

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

- In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

ii.  The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foresecable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

MUKUL M. PATEL
Parmer
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15t May, 2015



Annexure to the Independent Auditors” Report

As referred to in Annexure to the Independent Auditors ‘Report to the members of

the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31%t March 2015, we
report that :

1i.

1ii.

v.

Vi.

vii,

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars

including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business for the purchase fixed assets and sale
of services. We have not noticed any major weaknesses in the internal control
system during the course of audit.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant
provision of the Companies Act 2013 and its rules, are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by
the Central Government of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory
dues, except, tax deducted at source of Rs.14,61,127/- which is outstanding as of the
year-end for a period of more than six months from their due dates of payment.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us there were no
amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. Hence clause 3(vii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

=Y



Viil.

X1,

Xii.

The accumulated losses of the Company are more than 50% of its net worth, The
Company has incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

The Company did not have any dues to banks, financial institution and
debenture holders during the year. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given guarantee for loan taken by others from banks or financial institutions.
Hence, provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken any term loan during the year and hence, the provisions of clause 3(xi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and considering the size and nature of Companies
operations, no fraud of material significance on or by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul M. Patel
Partner

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15% May, 2015.



Arshiva Transport and Handling Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

{(Amount in ¥)

As At 31st March| As At 31st March
Notes 2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital 3 5,00,000 5.00,000
Reserves & Surplus 4 (10,53.69,640) (10,09,51,727)
NON-CURRENT-LIABILITIES
Long -Term Borrowings 5 10,38,37.371 10,04,85,825
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade Payables 6 4,02,690 13,36,547
Other Current Liabilities 7 23,80,488 25,32.631
Total 17.50,909 39,03,276
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 8 3,074 520,826
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 9 - 8,570
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables 10 16,74,800 26,56.800
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 73,035 7.17.080
Total 17,50,909 39.,03,276
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial 1-28

statements

As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

A
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/ W’i’v’i’u?fw{&-%

: '.i -\ !{Lu'\-ﬂ y A
Partner =it G
Name: Mukul Patel 3 \\‘./ d 7
Membership No.: 32489  ——

Place: Mumbai
Date : 15th May, 2013

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Ajay S Mittal

Director

DIN No.00226355

=l mn.;l‘"ﬂﬂ-lm—-‘
—_—

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN No.00613576




Arshiva Transport and Handling Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2015

{Amount in )

Particuars Notes For The Year For The Year
Ended 31st March| Ended 31st March
2015 2014

INCOME:

Revenue from Operations 12 - 26,56,800

Other Income 13 - 2,31,582

Total Revenue - 28,88,382

EXPENDITURE:

Operating Expenses 14 - 10,22,000

Finance Cost 15 2.81,645 3,98,047

Depreciation 8 1,62,528 1,40,620

Other Expenses 16 36,18,516 1,66,889

Total Expenses 40,62.688 17,27,556

Profit/(Loss) Before Adjustments (40,62,688) 11,60,826

Prior Period Expenses - 37,275

(40,62,688) 11,23,551°

Tax expenses :

Reversal of

Deferred Tax Liability - (1,65,698)

Profit / (Loss) for the year (40,62,688) 12,89,249

Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of X 10 each

Basic & Diluted (81.25) 25.78

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

See accompanying notes to the financial 1-28

statementls

As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co.
Charteréd Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

I"‘-"'
sy
Pariner
Name: Mukul Patel
Membership No.: 32489

Place: Mumbai
IDate ; 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

tG A LAOud s

———
Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Direc.or Director
DIN No.00226355 DIN No.00613576




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2015

{Amount in )

Particulirs For the year ended For the year ended
idaing 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
A, | CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ;
Profit/(Loss) before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (40,62,688) 11,23,551
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 1,62,528 1,40,620
Fixed Assets Discarded . 12,837
Finance Charges 2,81,645 3,98,047
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (36,18,515) 16,75,055
Adjusted for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities (1,52,143) (9,44,890)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Payables (9,33,857) 11,06,674
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Reveivables 9,90,570 (24,40,255)
Tax Payments - (2,070)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (37,13,946) (6,05,486)
B. | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Long Term Loan obtained (net) 33,51,547 9.67,525
Finance Charges (2.81,645) (3,98,047)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 30,69,902 5,69.478
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B) (6,44,044) (36,009)
Opening balance of of cash and cash equivalent 7,17,080 7,53.089
Less ; Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & cash Equivalent {6,44,044) (36.009)
Closing balance of of cash and cash equivalent 73,036 7,17.080
Notes:
Previous Year's figure are regrouped , reclassified wherever considered necessary.
As per our report of even date
For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556\
_— . \\—jdw—»\ r O Do s
0 R ~ s —
i R B

Partner AR E‘f‘/‘ﬂ Director

(AL Ajay S Mittal

Name: Mulkul Patel i DIN No.00226355

Membership No.: 32489
Place: Mumbai
Date : 15th May, 2015

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN No.00613576




(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31" March 2013

Corporate Information : ;

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 'the Company', incorporated on 5th March, 2010 to engage in the business of
transport and handling of containers/goods within India including movement of containers, cargo, goods trains using Indian
Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain, on lease/license or otherwise container trains, rakes, wagons, bogies

and create, develop or obtain on leasedlicense basis Railway sidings, Rail yards and Warehouse required for business of the
Company. '

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of accounting and in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP™) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting

standards, as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as prescribed by the Central Government and
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for
the year. The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known
or materialized.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition / installation (net of cenvat credit availed) less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amartization and impairment losses. The capitalised cost of software
includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets
in the year in which related software is implemented.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation on fixed assets is as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Tangible Assets

Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probeble that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, The following spzcific recognition eritevia must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Income from Services

Revenue from Transport Operations is accounted on commencement of journey for movement of cargo/container to the place
of destination considering the same as substantial completion of contract. Revenue from Handling Operations is recognized on
the basis of loading/unloading of container/cargo, considering the same a3 substantial completion of contracted services.
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(h)

(i)

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31" Mareh 2015

Retirement and Other employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, Employee State Insurance fund, gratuity fund and leave encashment entitlements.

Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund and State Plans viz. Employees® State Insurance Fund are
charged to the Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Other Employee Benefits
Liability for leave encashment entitlements is provided on the basis of independent actuarial valuation.

Taxes on Income
Provision for current tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods and measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets are not recognized unless there are timing
differences, the reversal of which will result in sufficient income or there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during the vear, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Assets
A provision is recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is
probable that cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the dbligation.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company.

Contingent Assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements,

Note:
Accounting policies not specifically referred to are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles.
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{Amount in %)

3: Share Capital As at Ag at

31st Mar 2015 st Mar 2014
Authorised
50,000 (Previous Year -50,000) Equity Shares ot 4 10/~ each 5,00,000 3,000 T
Issued, Subseribed and fully paid -up
50,000 [Previous Year -50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid-up 5,00,000 5,000,000
Total 5T, T 5,000, T

(#) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par velue of
The shareholders who held shares on the record date are entitied to dividend as my be proposed by the

approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proport

{b) Reconciliation of the shares outstauding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vole per share,
Board of Directors and is subject to

Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
ion to the aumber of equity shares held by the shareholders

Particulars Type of Shares] _ As at 31st March 2015 A% al 31st March 2014
Numler L Number T

At the beginning of the year Equity Shares 50,000 5,00,000 50,000 5,000,000

Addition during the year - = - E
Al the close of the vear Equity Shares S0.000 500,000 50,000 5,040,000

(¢} Shares held by the Holding Company

(Amount n )

Name of the Sharcholder As at 31st March 2015 | As at 31st March 2014
Arshiya Limited * 50,000 50,000
Total 50,000 __50,000

(d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity shares in the Company

{Amount in )

Name of the Sharcholder

As at 31st March 2014

As at 31st March 2015
Arshiva Limilad * (109%) . 50,000 50,000
Tutal 51,000 S0.000

* Notes -

{1} Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully pa.d up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section

89 of the Companies Act, 2013

(i) As per Records of the Company, including its register of sharcholdersimembers and other declarations re

reparding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares
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Arshiva Transport and Handling Limited

Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

4. Reserves & Surplus
Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Opening Bajance
Profit{Loss) for the year

Less:
Adjustment for Depreciation (Refer Note No 21)
Total

% Long -Term Borrowings
Interest free unsecured Loan from Holding Company.

Total
Nole: Repayable within 5 years or mutval consent of both parties in casz of
prepayment.

6. Trade Payables

Trade Payablcs'{ﬂafer Note Mo. 26)
Total
7. Other Current Liabilities
Salary Payable
Statutory Duss
Interest Payable on delaved payment of Statutory Dues

Total

(Amount inT)

As at Asat
Ist Mar 2015 31st Mar 2014
(10,09.51,727) (10,22,40,976)
(40.62,688) 12,89 249
(10,50,14,415) (10,09,51,727)
3,553,234 ¥
(10,53,69,640) (10,09,51,727)
10,38,37,371 10,04 85 825
10,38,37,371 10,04,85,825
402,690 13,36,547.00
4,072,650 13.36.547
1,51,156 1,51,156
15.21,807 19,16,282
7.07 525 465,193
23,850,488 Z532 631
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Arshiva Transport and Handling Limited

Nates to financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2315

9. Long Term Loans & Advances

{Unsecured - Considersd Good)
TDS Receivable

Total
10, Trade receivables
Unsecured

Debts outstanding for period exceeding six months.
Considered good

Other Debts

Total
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks

Total

12. Revenue From Operations

Sale of Services - Handling & Transportation Income

Tatal
13. Other Income
Miscellaneous Income

Total
14. Operating Expenses
Handling & Transportation Expenses

Total

{Amount im %)
As at Asat
31st Mar 2015 Jlst Mar 2004

> 8,570

- 8.570

16,74,800

- 26,56,800

16,74,800 16,56,800

73,035 717,080

73,035 717,080

- 26,56 800

Z 26.56,800

- 231582"

- 231,582

10.22.000

- 10,22,000




Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Notes to financi

15, Finance Cost

ments for the vear ende

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues

Bank Charges

16. Other Expenses

Total

Legal and Professional Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Remuneration to Auditors

Audit Fee
Other Services
Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

For the year ended

{Amount TN %)
For the yvear ended

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

281,383 3,62 699
262 35 348
281,645 3,98.,047
35.10,288 63 708

2,500 -
56,180 56,180

5,018 =
43,930 47,001
36,18,516 1,66,889
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Nodes to linancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2015

T'he Company has been incurring cash losses, whereby the Net Worth has been completely eroded. However, the Management hopes to aptimise
the benefits from the successful implementation of the Revival Plan as stated in Note no, 19 within a period of 3 to 5 years, by recoupment of
losses.

Preparation of Accounts on "Going Concern" basis

The Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a "Going Concern” basis, in view oft

The Scheme of Amalgamation under section 391/394 of the Companies Act, 1956 of amalgamation of Arshiya Industrial & Distrib ution Hub
Limited and Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (amalgamating companies) with the Company.

The Restructuring of the Business Operations of the amalgamating companies as detailed in Note No. 19,

The expectations of the Management to optimise the benefits from the successful implementation of the Revival Plan as referred to in note no.
19, within a period of 3 to 5 years of completion of the requisite formalities.

Scheme of Amalgamation:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 24.01.2014 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under Section
391/394 of the Companies Act. 1956 of amalgamation of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya Northern FTW Z Limited
(amalgamating companies) with the Company, The Equity Shareholders of the respective Companies have approved the scheme,

The Seheme inter-alia provides that:
On and from 01.01.2014 (the appointed date), the entire businesses and the whole of the undertakings of the amalgamating companies as
“Going Concerns” with all assets, properties and liabilities shall stand transferred and vested in the Company. _

The Company shall issue and allot 1 (one) fully paid equity share of Rs. 10/~ each for every equity share of Rs. 10/~ each held by the
shareholders of the amalgamating companies as consideration.

The transactions between the "appointed date” i.e. st January 2014 and effective date in the hands of the amalgamating companies shall be [or
and on behalf of the Company.
The Scheme is filed with Hon. High Court of Bombay on 27,03.2014 and is pending for approval.

Revival Plans

The Management expects to revive and revamp the business operations of the Company by:

Amalgamation of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited as referred to in Note no. 18,
Further, development of existing FTWZ activities and setting up Inland Container Depot (ICD) facilities.

Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and its applicability for accounting periods commencing on or after 1st
April, 2014, the Company has re-worked depreciation with reference to the useful lives of fixed assets prescribed by PART 'C’ of Schedule 11 to
the Act. Where the remaining useful life of asset is nil, the carrying amount of the assets after retaining the residual value, as at 1st April, 2014
amounting to Rs. 3,55,224/- has been adjusted to the balance of surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases the carrying values have
been depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. As a result the charge for

depreciation is higher by Rs. 21,907/- for the year ended 3 1st March 2015.
In absence of virlual eertainty of generating adequate future taxable income, Deferred Tax Asset for the year is not recognised.

Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payvables and Other liabilities other than due from/to

Holding Company are subject to confirmations and adjustment, if any, upon aceeptance of the ascertained differences, if any, on reconciliation.
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2013

Earnings per Share (EPS) - Basic / Diluted

(Amowunt in %)

Particilars Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
(Loss) / Profit afier tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss (40,62,688) 12,89.249
Number of Equity Shares 50,000 50,000
Face Value of Per Share 10 10
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (81.25) 15.78

Related Party Disclosures and Transactions

Related Party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 " Related party Disclosures" as given below:

Arshiya Limited

Holding
Company

Mr. Ajay S. Mittal
Mr, Navnit Choudhary

Key Management
Personnel

Note: Related parties are as identified by the management and relied upon by the Statutory Auditors.

The following table provides the information as regards transactions with Holding Company during the financial year ended 3 1st March

20015. There are no transactions with any of the Fellow Subsidiaries.

{Amount in ¥)

Nature of Transactions Folding ¢ ympuny
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

Unsecured Loan

-Loan Received 33,51,547 12,80,363

-Loan Repaid - 3.26,639
Reimbursement of Expenses 13,800
Balances as at year end
Unsecured Loan 10,38,37,371 10,04,85,8235
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Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 317 March 2013

Details of dues to Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has not received any intimation from "suppliers” regarding the status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006 and hence the disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with inferest payable as required

under the said Act have not been given,

Taxation
In the absence of taxable income for the year, provision for taxation has not been made.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recast wherever necessary lo contorm to those of curremt year

presentation.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Transpert and Handling Limited

Firm Registration No. 107556W

i IR, %. \\_\,.-)-M N Oownir oudds
W % N —

Psirtner \ 'Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Name: Mukul Patel S Direclor Director
Membership No.: 32489 D ACE DIN Ne.00226355 DIN Mo.00613576
Place: Mumbai

Date ; 15th May, 2015
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To. :
The Members of
ARSHIYA INDUSTRIAL & DISTRIBUTION HUB LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
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has in place an adequate internal financial control systems over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial staternents give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Emphasis of Matter
1. The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:
(a) All the secured borrowings turning into Non Performing Assets (refer Note no. 30).
(b) Substantial Creditors remaining outstanding to be paid.
(c) Unpaid full and final employees’ dues amounting to Rs. 9,528,971/-.
(d) Unpaid statutory dues amounting to Rs. 31,670,445/-.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as referred to in
note no. 28 in view of the following:

(1) Amalgamation of the Company (subject to Courts’ approval) with its fellow subsidiary (Note
no. 29).
(ii) “Corporate Debt Restructuring” approved by the Secured Lenders (Banks) (Note no 30).

(i)  Revival Plans proposed to be implemented by the Management to improve operations. (Note
No. 32).

2. Further to above, we draw attention to the following Notes to the Financial Statements:

(i) Note No. 33 Re. Tax Deducted at Source;

(ii) Note No. 34 Re. Fixed Assets;

(i) Note No. 36 Re. Capital Work In Progress; and

(iv) Note No. 38 Re. Loans/Guarantees granted/received.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; and

(P With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

I. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer to Note Nos. 26 (a) and 40 to the financial statements;

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts and hence
there are no material foreseeable losses; and

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

Mukul Patel
Partner

Membership No. 032489
Place: Mumbai

Date: 15" May, 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors ‘Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2015, we report that :

i.

1il.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

viil,

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars, including quantitative
derails and situation of fixed assets.

(b} As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verificd by the management at reasonable
intervals; and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase inventory and hence,
the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other
parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Consequently, the provisions of clauses 4 iii(b) to 4 iii(g) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of Fixed Assets and sale of Services. During the course of our audit, we
have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system. l'urther, the activities
carried on by the Company do not require purchase ol inventory and sale of goods.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevan! provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not required to maintain
cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the Central Government of [ndia vide notification
dated 1 April 2014.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues, save and

excepl, income tax deducted at source, works contract tax and entrv tax. The arvears of such outstanding as of
the year-end for a period of more than six months from their due dates of payment are Rs, 29,404,854/-,

Rs.381,633/- and Rs.853,7632/- respectively.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise duty which have
not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(¢) According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company does not have any
amount which is pending 10 be transferred to the lnvestor Fducation and Protection Fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made
thereunder.

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are not less than 50% of its net worth, The Company has
incurred cash losses during the year and in the fmmiediately preceding financial year.

Pagedof 6




xl.

The Company has not issued any debenturcs. Based on our audit procedures and according 1o the
information and explanations given by the management, during the year, the Company, taking into account
approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and a Financial
Institution, the defaults whereof are stated hereunder:

_ default on account of non payment of interest is stated as under :

Banks
Period of Default | Term Loans FITL
Apr-14 5,048,334 4.678,243
May-14 31,267,248 | 5,273,690
Jun-14 37,263,255 5,153,862
Jul-14 38,636,199 5,290,574
Aug-14 39,176,706 6,486,468
Sep-14 38,327,853 6,305,814

Oct-14 39,819,632 6,471,618
Nov-14 38,840,222 6,310,642
Dec-14 40,497,760 6,579,953
Jan-15 40,876,109 6,641,426
Feb-15 37,265,283 6,054,750
Mar-15 41,606,142 6,760,040
Total | 428,624,743 | 7,200,7081

default on account of non payment of principal amount is stated as under :

Banks
Period of Defanlt Term Loans FITL

Nov-14 52,868,688 6,597,959
Dec-14 52,868,688 6,597,959
Jan-15 52,868,688 6,597,959
Feb-15 52,868,688 6,597,959
Mar-15 52,868,688 6,597,959

Total | 264,343,442 32,989,795

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loan taken by others from a bank or financial institution and hence the provisions of
clause 3 (x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the year, no term loans have been obtained by the Company. Hence, the provisions of
clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xii. To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, and considering the size and nature of the Company’s operations, no fraud of
material significance on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

Place; Mumbai
Date: 15" May, 2015

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

SR\

¢ M Al >
-:{! J)' !

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No. 032489
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March-2015

{Amount in ¥)

Notes As at Year

As at Year

31st March, 2015 31ist March, 2014

I. Equity and Liabilities

1. Shareholder's Funds

(a) Share Capital 4 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 2,01,40,90,279 2,75,18,44,287
2,16,40,20,229 2,90,17,74,237
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 6 4,13,16,58,002 4,42,20,69,738
(b) Long Term Pravisions 7 4,91,166 3,37,876
4,13,21,49,168 4,42,24,07,614
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 8 62,79,539 53,76,489
(b) Other Current Liabilities 9 1,27,55,02,488 43,18,10,857
{c) Short Term Provisions 7 44.07,177 13,63,155
1,28,61,89,204 43,85,50,501
Total 7,58,23,58,601 7,76,27,32,352
II1. Assets
1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 10 7,42,87,09,771 7.59,19,95,055
(ii) Intangible Assets 11 3,74,757 10,16,948
(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 3,90,55,683 4,78,77,113
7,46,81,40,211 7,64,08,89,116
{b) Long Term Loans and Advances 12 80,41,325 42,27,125
7,47,61,81,536 7,64,51,16,241
2. Current assets
(a) Trade Receivables i3 20,72,247 1,49,856
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 14 3,88,254 1,42,29,439
(c) Short-Term Loans and Advances 12 10,37,16,564 10,32,36,816
10,61,77,065 11,76,16,111
Total 7,58,23,58,601 7,76,27,32,352
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No, 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Mem. No. 32489

Q*\H\.\ﬂm

Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00226355

Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

MG

arasodh g
e

Navnit Choudhary

DIN : 00613576



III

IV

VI

VII

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March, 2015

(Amount in %)
. Year ended Year ended
P
articulars Notes March 31, 2C h 31s
Revenue From Operations 15 18,00,000 13,09,430
Other Income 16 25,94,665 14,60,764
Total Revenue 43,94,665 27,70,194
Expenses:
Cost of Operations 17 5,05,620 3,03,155
Employee Benefits Expense 18 1,54,88,103 4,86,63,764
Finance Costs 19 54,72,65,110 48,33,10,417
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (Refer 10 & 11 16,36,18,233 12,82,51,989
Note No. 35)
Other Expenses 20 1,12,17,217 3,87,86,804
Total Expenses 73,80,94,283 69,93,16,129
(Loss) before exceptional items (III - IV) (73,36,99,618) (69,65,45,935)
Exceptional items (Refer Note No. 37) 37,45,149 (5,14,52,048)
(Loss) for the year (V - VI) (73,74,44,767) (64,50,93,887)
Earnings per equity share: (Refer Note No. 24)
(1) Basic (49.19) (57.12)
(2) Diluted (49.19) (57.12)

Face value per share - Rs 10

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Mem. No. 32489

Place: Mumbai .
Date: 15th May, 2015

) N\ N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00226355
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Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576



Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Amount in T)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax (73,74,44,767) (64,50,93,887)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation/Amortisation 16,36,18,233 12,82,51,989
Capital Work in Progress Written off (Refer Note No. 36(a)) 82,07,055 =
Unpaid Balances written back (39,35,637) -
Interest on delayed payment of TDS written back (Refer Note No. 33) (5,26,269) -
Finance Expense 54,72,65,110 48,33,10,417
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (2,28,16,275) (3,35,31,481)
Movement in working capital
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payable 9,03,050 (2,62,467)
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Provision 30,44,022 {23,64,620)
Increase/(decrease) in Long Term Provision 1,53,290 {23,39,904)
Increasef(decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (75,77,130) (1,97,26,308)
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivable (19,22,391) 23,51,683
(Increase)/decrease in Lang Term Loan and Advances (38,14,200) 8,23,53,827
(Increase)/decrease in Short Term Loan and Advances (6,23,157) (7,79,28,341)
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITY (3,26,52,791) (5,14,47,611)
Taxes paid/TDS (net of refunds) 1,43,409 (27,767)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (3,25,09,382) (5,14,75,378)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets - {45,14,949)
Addition to Capital work in progress 6,14,375 =
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 6,14,375 (45,14,949)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from share capital issued - 4,98,16,830
Proceeds from share premium on issue of share capital z 1,19,55,98,296
Proceeds/(Repayment)of long term borrowings/Deposits 6,97,45,700 (51,29,47,360)
Interest paid (5,16,91,878) (66,78,03,039)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (€) 1,80,53,822 6,46,64,727
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C)
(1,38,41,185) 86,74,403
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,42,29,439 55,55,035
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,88,254 1,42,29,439

Notes :
a. Cash and Cash equivalents includes : Cash ¥ 27/- Bank Balance in Current Accounts 73,88,227/-

b. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in the Accounting standard 3
"Cash Flow Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W
1RJTR %N\J\\,J-A Mﬂ.\.fﬂ&l"“. oscMs

T TN = —
Mulkul Patel LTUMAA L) Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner A Director Director
Mem. No. 32489 e DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Notes to the financial statements
1. General Information

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company
incorporated under the Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is a subsidiary of Arshiya
Ltd, a Company listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange
(NSE).

The Company is engaged in providing facility of warehousing including temperature controlled
storage and other cargo/logistics related activities.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, provision of the Act (to the extent notified).

These financial statements are prepared by applying the "Going Concern” assumption based on
future business plans as referred in Note No. 32.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the year in which the results materialize/are known.

(ii) Fixed Assets and capital work in progress

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit
availed, if any) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except land
which is carried at cost. All costs including borrowing cost incurred during pre-
operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized.
Land is carried at its revalued amount being the estimated market value based on
revaluation report.

(b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses. The capitalized cost of software includes license fees, cost of implementation and
system integration services. These costs are capitalized as intangible assets in the year
in which related software is implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress
The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost
comprising direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

)
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(iii)

(iv)

()

(ii)

(v)

(vi)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalised till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part
of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Depreciation and Amortization

Tangible Assets
Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method in

accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (Refer Note no. 35)

Intangible Assets

Software (intangible asset other than (ii) below), is amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use.

Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including
expenditure on implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use

Leases

Operating lease

Assets taken on lease under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under

operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the
respective lease agreements.

Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area to units is

accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms.

(b) Revenue from value added services and other activities is recognized based on

completion of agreed contracted services.

(¢) Interest and other income is accounted on accrual basis except where the receipt of

(vii)

income is uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.
Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment
entitlements.

(a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss, as and when accrued.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The liability for Leave encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis
as per the Accounting Standard -15 “"Employee Benefits” (AS 15) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(viii) Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange
rates on the date of the transaction. Realised gains and losses on settlement of
foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at
the year-end exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ix) Accounting for Taxes on Income

Income Taxes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard - 22 on
“Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS-22) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Tax expenses
comprise both Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to/recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax
rates. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are recognized, if required, for future tax
consequence attributable to timing difference between taxable income and accounting
income that are measured at relevant enacted tax rates.

(x) Impairment

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made
for impairment loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment
loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of
Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(xi) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised
when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are
disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
Financial Statement.

(xii) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed
and disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive commaoan

equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-
dilutive.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(xiii) Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company.

(xiv) Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the
generally accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

4. Share Capital {Amount in T)
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Authorised
2,00,00,000 (2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of £10/- each 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Issued Shares
1,52,46,226 (1,52,46,226) Equity Shares of T10/- each 15,24.62,260 15,24,62,260
Issued. Subscribed and fully paid
14,992,995 (14,992,995) Equity shares of T10/- each 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950
Total 14,99,29,950 14,99,29,950

{a) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends to the shareholders who are holding the shares
on record date which is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company
in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear

_Equity Shares
As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Number (Amount in ) Number (Amount in T)
Balance at the beginning of the vear 1,49,92,995 14,99,29,950 1,00,11,312 10,01,13,120
Issued during the year = - 49,81,683 4,98,16,830
Balance a ear 1,49,92 995 14,99,29,950 1,49,92,995 14,99,29,950

{c) Equity Shares held by the Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiary Company

As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Number {Amount in ) Number (Amount in T}
Arshiya Limited * 1.35.86,659 13,58,66,590 1,35,86,659 13,58,66,590
Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE, the Fellow 14.06,336 1,40,63,360 14,06,336 1,40,63,360
Subsidiary
1,49,92,995 14,99,29,950 1,49,92,935 14,99,29,950

(d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Equity Shares in the Company

As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equitv Share of Rs 10/- fully paid up
Arshiya Limited * 1,35,86,659 90.62 1,35,86,659 90.62
Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE 14,06,336 9.38 14,06,336 9.38
Total 1,49,92,995 100.00 14992995 100.00

* Notes :-

(i) Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per
section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) As per Records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

5. Reserves & Surplus

[Amount in ¥)

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

Securities Premium Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the vear
Add : On issue of Equity Shares

Less : Utilised for Stamp Duty & Other Fees paid for increase in Share Capital

Revaluation Reserve

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year
{Loss) for the year

¥

1,56,19,19,196
1,19,56,03,920
5,624

2,75,75,17,492

2,75,75,17,492  2,75,75,17,492

1,05,25,46,008 1,05,25,46,008

(1,05,82,19,213)
(73,74,44,767)

(41,31,25,329)
(64,50,93,884)

Less: Adjustment for Depreciation (Refer Note No. 3(iv)) (3,09,241) x
Balance at the close of the year (1,79,59,73,221) (1,05,82,19,213)
Total _ 2,01,40,90,279 2,75,18,44,287
6. Long term borrowings {Amount in 7)
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Secured (Refer Note No. 30)
Loan from Banks -

Fund-Based Term Loans 3,34,06,54,610 3,80,14,61,344 53,25,68,126 256,45,00,000
Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) 53,38,95,645 59,53,60,456 9,42,16,878 3,35,00,000
3,87,45,50,255 4,39,68,21,800 62,67,85,005 29,80,00,000
Loan from Others:
Fund-Based Term Loans 16,69,79,530 - 2,66,19,925 -
Funded Interest Term Loans {FITL) 2,69,30,865 - 47,52,506 -
19,39,10,399 - 3,13,72,431 -
4,06,84,60,654  4,39,68,21,800 65,81,57,436 29,80,00,000
Unsecured
Inter Corporate Loan
From Holding Company 4,36,01,654 2,52,47,938 =
From Fellow Subsidiary Companies 1,95,95,694 - = %
6,31,97,348 2,52,47,938 - -
Total 4,13,16,58,002 4,42,20,69,738 65,81,57,436 29,80,00,000

(a) The Term loans are secured as under :-

(i) Securities provided ;

- First mortgage charge on all immovabie properties (including equipments) and assets of the Company

future

- both present and

- First charge by way of hypothecation of all the movable assets including debtors, present and future.

- First charge/assignment and/or creation of security interest in favour of Lenders.

- Personal guarantee of two Directars of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company.
- Pledge of Equity Share of the Company held by the Hotding Company.

- Carporate Guarantee of the Holding Company,

(i) Rate of Interest is 11% p.a. upto 31.03.2015 and 13% p.a thereafter




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub

Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

(iii) Repayment Shedule of Secured Loa

ns is as follows :-

(Amount in T)

Banks Others
i Term Loans FITL Term Loans FITL
2014-2015 25,17,59,478 3,14,05,626 1,25,83,965 15,84,169
2015-2016 28,08,08,648 6,28,11,252 1,40,35,960 31,68,338
2016-2017 47,44 69,785 15,70,28,131 2,37,15,933 79,20,844
2017-2018 54,22,51,183 37,68,67,514 2,71,03,924 1,90,10,025
2018-2019 54,22,51,183 - 2,71,03,924 -
2019-2020 54,22,51,183 = 2,71,03,924 -
2020-2021 54,22,51,183 = 2,71,03,924 -
2021-2022 56,16,17,297 - 2,80,71,921 -
2022-2023 13,55,62,796 = 67,75,981 2
Total 3,87,32,22,736 62,81,12, 523 19,35,99,455 3,16,83,375
iv) Detail of unpaid term loan and funded interest term loan as on 31-03-2015 is as follows :-
(Amount in T)
Banks Others
Period of Default Term Loans FITL Term Loans FITL
Nov-14 5,03,51,896 62,681,125 25,16,793 3,156,834
Dec-14 5,03,51,896 62,81,125 25,16,793 3,16,834
Jan-15 5,03,51,896 62,81,125 25,16,793 3,16,834
Feb-15 5,03,51,896 62,81,125 25,16,793 3,16,834
Mar-15 5,03,51,896 62,681,125 25,16,793 3,16,834
Total 25,17,59,478 3,14,05,626 1,25,83,965 15,84,169
{b) Loan from Holding Company and Subsidiary Companies
Interest free loan repayable after 12 months but before 5 years.
7. Provisions (Amount in ¥)
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

Emplovee Benefits

Leave Travel Allowance = = 8,58,062 5,90,622

Gratuity 1,76,637 = = 1,29,978

Leave Eancashment 3,14,529 3,37,876 2,38,613 2,55,057

4,91,166 3,37,876 10,96,675 9,75,657

Expenses = - 33,10,502 3,87,498

- - 33,10,502 3,87,498

Total 4,91,166 3,37,876 44,07,177 13,63,155

8. Trade payables (Amount in ")
As at As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Trade Pavables {Refer Note No. 27) 62.79,53% 53,76,489

Total 62,79,539 53,76,489




Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

9. Other Current Liabilities

{Amount in T)

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

Current Maturities of Long Term Secured

Borrowings (Refer Note No. 6 & 30 )

Fund-Based Term Loans from Banks 53,25,68,126 26,45,00,000
Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) from Banks 9.42,16,878 3,35,00,000

Fund-Based Term Loans from Other 2,66,19,925 =

Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) from Other 47,52,506 -
65,81,57,436 29,80,00,000

Interest accrued and due on ( Refer Note
No. 30 )

Term Loans from Banks 40,79,51,677 -
Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) from Banks 6,83,67,926 50,58,592

Term Loans from Other 2,06,73,065 -

Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) from Other 36,39,157 =
50,06,31,825 50,58,592

Other Liabilities
Project Creditors (Refer Note No. 27 ) 6,52,48,476 6,77,90,588
Employees' Dues 1,15,95,033 1,76,76,748
7,68,43,509 8,54,67,336
Statutory Liabilities

Tax Deducted at Source 3,03,73,830 3,56,63,009
Service Tax = 1,60,684
Provident Fund 61,220 44,148
Entry Tax 8,53,762 8,53,762
Works Contract Tax 3,81,633 3,81,633
Interest pavable on unpaid Tax Deducted at Source 81,99,273 61,81,693
3,98,69,718 4,32,84,929
Total 1,27,55,02,488 43,18,10,857

Details of unpaid Interest on term loan and Interest on funded interest term loan as on 31-03-2015 Is as follows :-

{(Amount in T)

Banks Others
Period of Default Term Loans FITL Term Loans FITL

Apr-14 48,75,816 44,16,384 1,72,518 2,61,859
May-14 2,94,56,940 49,75,243 18,10,308 2,98.447
Jun-14 3,54,81,445 48,62,344 17,81,810 2,91,518
Jul-14 3,67,92,332 49,86,615 18,43,867 3,03,959
Aug-14 3,73,15,612 61,79,669 18,61,094 3,06,799
Sep-14 3,65,09,968 60,06,139 18,17,885 2,99.676
Oct-14 3,79,24,168 61,59,153 18,95,464 3,12,465
Nov-14 3,69,88,765 60,05,431 18,51,457 3,05,210
Dec-14 3,85,67,290 62,61,718 19,30,470 3,18,235
Jan-15 3,89,27,603 63,20,218 19,48,505 3,21,208
Feb-15 3,54,88,901 57,61,916 17,76,382 2,92,834
Mar-15 3,96,22,837 64,33,095 19,83, 305 3,26,945

Total 40,79,51,677 6,83,67,925 2,06,73,065 36,39,156

(f' \
5
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

MNotes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31ist March, 2015

12. Loans and Advances

Non Current

(Amount in T)

Current

As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Capital Advances 80,11,325 26,11,325 - -
Deposits 30,000 16,15,800 - -
80,41,325 42,27,125 - -
Other Loans and Advances
Income Tax Payments - - 18,072 1,61,481
Prepaid Expenses - - 28,432 5,91,038
Other advances - = 7.47,246 N
Indirect Tax Receivable* - - 10,29,22 814 10,24,84 297
- - 10,37,16,564 10,32,36,816
TOM] + (b} 80,41,325 42,27,125 10,37,16,564 10,32,36,816
* Represents Cenvat Credit charged on Fixed Assets held available for future set-off.
13. Trade Receivables {Amount in T)
As at As at

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

{Unsecured, considered good)

Qutstanding for a period

- exceeding six months from the date they became payable 49,767 =
- others 20,22,480 1,49,856
Total 20,72,247 1,49,856
14. Cash and Cash Equivalents {Amount in T}
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Balances with Scheduled Banks :
In Current Accounts 3,88,227 1,42,29,412
Cash in Hand 27 27
(As Certified by the Management)
Total 3,88,254 1,42,29,439
_15. Revenue from operations (Amount in T)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Sale of Services:
Income from warehousing and handling business 18,00,000 13,09,430
Total 18,00,000 13,009,430
16. Other In (Amount in T}
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Interest Income 2,79,953 -
Sundry balances written back (net) 15,22,053 14,60,764
Miscellaneous Income 7,92,659 -
Total 25,94,665 14,60,764




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

17. Cost of Operations (Amount in T)
Year Ended Year Ended

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Direct Costs 5,05,620 3,03,155

Total 5,05,620 3,03,155

18. Employee Benefits Expense {Amountin 7)
Year Ended Year Ended

31ist March 2015 31st March 2014

Salaries and Wages 1,47,64,751 4,55,20,646

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds 4,34,828 8,81,691

Emplovee Welfare and other amenities 2,88,524 22,61,427

Total 1,54,88,103 4,86,63,764

19. Finance Costs {(Amount in T)
Year Ended Year Ended

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Interest 54,39,72,042 47,91,34,263

Interest on unpaid Tax Deducted at Source 26,31,512 35,80,183

Other borrowing costs 6,61,556 5,95,971

Total 54,72,65,110 48,33,10,417

20. Other expenses (Amount in ¥)
Year Ended Year Ended

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Power & Fuel 11,52,179 90,18,255

Rent 3,00,000 2,25,000

Repairs and Maintenance - Building 2,67,759 10,49,461

Repairs and Maintenance - Other 1,35,617 3,14,239

Security Charges - 22,28,490

Housekeeping Expenses = 19,20,630

Insurance 5,83,493 53,67,963

Rates & Taxes 3,48,052 1,67,922

Legal and Professional charges 54,63,209 99,21,429

Bad debts written off - 19,23,596

Communication Expenses 5,82,245 15,52,198

Travelling and Convevance Expenses 12,359,104 35,20,545

Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 8,747 32,564

Printing and Stationery 18,296 70,388

Auditors Remuneration - Audit fees 5,00,000 2,00,000

- Other services - 3,50,000

Miscellaneous Expenses 6,18,516 9,24,123

Total 1,12,17,217 3,87,86,804




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

21.

The disclosures as required as per the revised AS 15 are as follows:

a — Brief descriptions of the plans

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

The Company has various schemes for long-term benefits such as provident fund and gratuity.
The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund and Employees State Insurance
where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company's
defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees of the Company are also entitled to leave

encashment as per the Company's policy.

b - Defined Contribution Plans (Provident Fund)

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit

and Loss:

Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund

[Includes Administrative Charges, EDLI charges and Employers'

Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995]

T 434,828/-
(¥ 881,691/-)

c - Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Funded)

The following tables set out the status of Gratuity liability as required by AS-15.

{(Amount In )

PARTICULARS As at As at

31* March, 31" March,

2015 2014

I-Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets 9.00% 8.70%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 10.00%
II-Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 817,895 2,781,963
Service Cost 191,226 1,249,362
Interest Cost 71,802 222,557
Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) = -
Liability Transferred in/(out) Nil (779,136)
Benefits Paid (90,000) (535,961)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (78,737) (2,120,890)
Liability at the End of the Year 912,186 817,895
III-Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of Planned assets at the beginning of the
year 687,917 1,223,878
Expected Return on plan assets 55,934 106,477
Contributions = =
Transfer from other company = =
Benefits Paid (20,000) (535,961)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 81,698 {106,477)
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 735,549 687,917
IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Asset 55,934 106,477
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets 81,698 (106,477)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 137,632 -
V. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period (912,186) (817,895)
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 735,549 687,917
Difference 176,637 (129,978)
Unrecognized past service cost = =
Liability recognized in balance sheet 176,637 (129,978)

V1. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets

Insured managed Fund 100% | 100%
VII. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 191,226 1,249,362
Interest Cost 71,802 222,557
Expected return on Plan Assets (55,934) (106,477)
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (160,435) (2,014,413)
Past Service cost % -
Expense recognized in Profit & Loss A/c 46,659 (648,971)
VIII. Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability 129,978 1,558,085
Expense as Above 46,659 (648,971)
Employers Contribution = =
Net Transfers-In from other companies = -
Net Transfers-Out from Other Companies = (779,136)
Closing Net Liability 176,637 129,978
IX .Expected Employers contribution in the Next year

As per Actuarial Valuation report 398,490 ] 303,204
X. Experience Adjustment

On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss (116,523) (2,075,607)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain 81,698 (106,477)

d - Defined Benefit Plan -Leave Encashment (unfunded)
The following tables set out the status of leave liability as required by AS-15.

{(Amount In ¥)

PARTICULARS As at
31% March, el

2015 31* March, 2014
I-Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets = =
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 10.00%
II-Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 592,933 3,349,896
Service Cost 187,229 967,872
Interest Cost 55,082 276,992
Liability Transferred in = =
Liability transferred Qut - {608,982)
Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) = -
Curtailment - -
Benefits Paid i - {1,461,151)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (282,103) (1,922,694)
Liability at the End of the Year 553,142 562,933
III-Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of Planned assets at the beginning of the = -
vear
Expected Return on plan assets = =
Contributions - -
Transfer from other company - -




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Benefits Paid | - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss | - -
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year - -
Total Actuarial gain/(Loss) to be Recognized = -

VI .Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Assets = =
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) on Plan Assets = =
Actual Return on Plan Assets = =
V. Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Liability at the end of the year 553,142 592,933
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year

Difference 553,142 592,933

Unrecognized past service cost = =
Liability recognized in balance sheet 553,142 592,933

VI. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 187,229 967,872
Interest Cost 55,083 267,992
Expected return on Plan Assets = =
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (282,103) {(1,922,694)
Curtailment - -

Past Service cost = =
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit &

(Loss) (39,791) (686,830)
VII Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability 592,933 3,349,896
Expense as Above (39791) (686,830}
Employers Contribution - (1,461,151)
Net Transfers from Other Companies - (608,982)
Closing Net Liability 553,142 592,933
VIII Experience Adjustments:

On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss (313,498) (1,891,028)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain = =

22, Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in the warehousing and handling business. In the
opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set of risk and returns
and hence the same has been considered as representing the single primary segment.

The Company provides services within India and it doesn't have any operation in economic
environments with different risk and returns, Hence it is considered that the Company is
operating in single geographical segment.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

23. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 “Related Party
Disclosures” as given below:

S.No | Name of Related Party Relationship
Arshiya Limited Holding Company
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited | Fellow Subsidiaries
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE
Mr. Ajay S. Mittal - Director Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Archana Mittal - Director
Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

NGO A WNR

Note:
The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of
the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by the auditors.

The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties
were as follows:

(ii) Summary of significant related party transactions (as identified by the
management) carried out in the ordinary course of business are as follows:
(Amount In %)

Transactions Fellow Subsidiaries Holding Company
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Share Capital
Share Capital held as at the 1,406,336 1,406,336 135,866,590 86,049,760

beginning of the year

Issue of Shares during the year -- - - 49,816,830
(excluding securities premium)

Share Capital held as at the end 1,406,336 1,406,336 135,866,590 135,866,590
of the year

Loan Taken

Balance as at the beginning of = == 25,247,938 | 1,150,303,578
the year

Loan Taken during the year 21,212,735 89,522,949 18,353,716 164,075,281
Loan (Repaid)/(adjusted) 1,617,040 89,522,949 -- 43,710,571
during the year

Issue of Equity Shares i = == | 1,245,420,750
including Securities Premium

Balance as at the end of 19,595,694 £ 43,601,654 25,247,938
the year

Balances as at year end
Corporate Guarantee o - 5,227,249,915 | 4,700,285,265

' ~®V{} » :|




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

24.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

Computation of Earnings Per Share 5
(Basic and Diluted) d01Yvis 201348
Net (Loss) attributable to Shareholders (%) (737,444,767) | (645,093,887)
Ef&?:[tjm average number of Equity Shares for basic & 14,992,995 11,294,266
Nominal Value per share (%) 10 10
Earning Per Share - Basic & Diluted(3) (49.19) (57.12)

25.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income:
In view of the loss for the year, no provision for taxation has been made.

In absence of virtual certainty of earning adequate taxable income in the foreseeable
future, Deferred Tax Asset for the year is not recognised.

26.Contingent liability not provided for in respect of:
(Amount in T)

Particulars Ay ot IS 8.
31 March, 2015 31 March, 2014

(a) Claims Against the Company not 11,39,52,266 =
acknowledged as Debt

(b) Right to recompense by Secured Lenders 441,000,000 245,000,000

27. Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure,
if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest payable as
required under the said act have not been given.

28. Preparation of financial statements on “Going Concern” basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “Going concern” basis in
view of:

(a) Package under Corporate Debt Restructuring approved by the Secured Lenders.
(b) The Restructuring of the Business Operations by developing an Inland Container Depot
(ICD) (Refer note no. 32).
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

29. Scheme of Amalgamation

(a)The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 24.01,2014 approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under Section 391/394 of the Companies Act,
1956 of amalgamation of the Company with Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
(amalgamated company). The scheme also provides for amalgamation of Arshiya
Northern FTWZ Limited (amalgamating company) with the amalgamated company. The
Equity Shareholders of the respective Companies have approved the scheme.

{b)The Scheme inter-alia provides that:

(i) On and from 01.01.2014 (the appointed date), the entire businesses and the
whole of the undertakings of the Company as “Going Concern” with all assets,
properties and liabilities shall stand transferred and vested in the amalgamated
company.

(ii) Issue and allotment by the amalgamated company of 1 (one) fully paid equity
share of T 10/- each for every equity share of ¥ 10/- each held by the
shareholders of the Company as consideration.

(iif) ~ Transactions between the appointed date and effective date of the Company shall
be for and on behalf of the amalgamated company.

(c)The Scheme has been filed with Hon. High Court of Bombay on 27.03.2014 and is
pending for approval.

30. Corporate Debt Restructuring(CDR):

30.1 During the previous year, Secured Lenders (Banks) have approved the restructuring
package under “Corporate Debt Restructuring Package” (CDR), which inter-alia provides
for:

(a) (i) Reschedulement of the Principal amounts of the loans and dates thereof.
(i) Funding of unpaid interest on the Term Loans for the period from November 2012
to October 2014.
(iii) ~ Waiver of all liquidated damages/penal charges/penal interest/excess interest i.e.
in excess of documented rates of all the facilities from the cut-off date 1%
November, 2012 till the implementation of the package.

(b) A right to recompense in favour of Secured Lenders.

30.2 This year, the Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service
the loan repayments/interest payments which resulted into Company’s borrowings
becoming “"Non Performing Assets” (NPA's) with the Banks.

30.3 Such defaults entitle the CDR lenders to reverse the waiver/sacrifices granted by them,
which is estimated to be ¥ 441,000,000/~ as on 31 March, 2015.

30.4 During the year, a lender, State Bank of Travancore (SBT) who was part of the
“Corporate Debt Restructuring” (CDR) has assigned its respective outstanding loans in
favour of Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company (EARC) on the same terms and
conditions as applicable to said lender.
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

31. Provision for Interest
The Company has provided interest for the year:

(a) In respect of loans from banks, on the basis of statements received from them and in
absence thereof, as per the concessional rates (excluding penal interest) as
mentioned in Letter Of Approval (LOA) under the CDR.

(b) In respect of loans assigned to EARC, aon the basis of balance confirmations received
from them.

32. Revival Plans

Despite superior facilities, due to delays in the implementation of Goods & Service Tax
Act (GST) and increase of Foreign Direct Investment in Retail Sector, the operations of
the Company have suffered.

The Management of the Company has taken steps for conversion of Industrial and
Distribution Hub (IDH) into Inland Container Depot (ICD), which will attract more
number of containers and will enable the Company to explore revenue streams with
higher margins. The Company has obtained an approval as per clause (aa) of sub-
section (1) of section 7 of Customs Act, 1962 (52 of 1962), for Inland Container Depot
facility vide notification no. 36/2015-Customs (N.T.) dated 7th April, 2015, the Central
Board of Excise and Customs, Department of Revenue, Ministry of Finance, Government
of India. The Company expects to complete all regulatory formalities and commence
operations in the Financial Year 2015-16,

33. Tax Deducted at Source
During the year,

(a) The Company had deducted income tax at source (TDS) aggregating to ¥ 4,400,614/
during the earlier years from the amounts payable to various parties. The Company
has not paid the said TDS to the government on assumption that such parties would
have paid their income tax dues on the income declared by them in the respective
years. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has transferred an amount of ¥
4,400,614/~ back to the respective parties.

(b) The Company has written back an aggregate amount of ¥ 526,269/~ representing
interest on unpaid tax deducted at source provided in earlier years on the premise
that since the corresponding tax deducted is not payable as mentioned in Note no.
(a) above, interest thereon is not payable.

34. Fixed Assets
In view of the revival plans of the Company as referred to in note no. 32, in the
opinion of management, the carrying value of the Fixed Assets are not estimated to
be lower than the recoverable values and hence, no provision for impairment of Fixed
Assets is called far.
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Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

The Company has aligned its depreciation policy in accordance with Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 1% April, 2014 and has accordingly provided
depreciation based on revised respective useful life of the assets. Till previous year, the
Company provided depreciation on Straight Line Method basis as per the rates
prescribed in Schedule XIV of Companies Act, 1956. This change has resulted into
current year depreciation being higher by ¥ 39,039,300/-.

Capital Work-in-Progress [CWIP]

(a) During the year, the management decided to discontinue further development of
its Software for Warehouse Management and hence, a sum of ¥ 8,207,055/- is
written off.

(b) The Company has suspended capital expenditure due to non optimum utilisation of
existing capacity. However, the Company expects to use the existing Capital
expenditure held as Work in Progress to implement Inland Container Depot project
by October 2015. Therefore, in the opinion of the Management, the deferment of
completion of the existing facilities has not impaired the future economic life of the
assets held under Capital Work-in-Progress at this juncture and hence, no
provision for impairment of assets is called for.

Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under:
{(Amount in %)

Sr. | Exceptional items Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31% March, 2015 | 31 March, 2014
i Unpaid Balances written back (3,935,637) ==
2 Interest on delayed payment of (526,269) ==
TDS written back (Refer Note No.
33)
3 Capital Work in Progress Written 8,207,055 o]
off (Refer Note No. 36(a))
4 Interest waiver on Secured Loans = (51,452,048)
Total 3,745,149 (51,452,048)

The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013 as regards inter Company advances/loans/guarantees granted/received are not
applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of business.

Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade
Payables and Other liabilities other than due from/to Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries are
subject to confirmations. Adjustments, if any, shall be made in the financial statements
of the year in which such differences are accepted.

Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other legal
proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to them which are at different stages
before the respective judicial forums / authorities. Claims by the said lenders and
creditors have been contested by the Company in those proceedings and not
acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimate the financial
implications of such claims.




Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

41. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recast
wherever necessary to conform to those of current year presentation.

Signature to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Reg. No. 107556W Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Chartered Accountants
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Mukul Patel : Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 32489 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15™ May, 2015
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 20135, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thercunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditi ng specified under section143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial control systems over financial reporting and the operating

YUSUF BUILDING. 2nvp FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI - 400 001,
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 9187 - FAX 1 91-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL: maparikh@eth.net
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effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Emphasis of Matter
1. The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:
(a) All the secured borrowings turning into Non Performing Assets (refer Note no. 35).
(b} Substantial Creditors remaining outstanding to be paid.
(c) Unpaid full and final employees’ dues amounting to Rs. 3,730,343/-.
(d) Unpaid statutory dues amounting to Rs. 14,438,929/-

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as referred to in
note no. 33 in view of the following:

(i) Amalgamation of the Company (subject to Court's approval) with its fellow subsidiary (Note
no. 34).
(ii) “Corporate Debt Restructuring” approved by the Secured Lenders (Banks) (Note no 35).

(i)  Revival Plans proposed to be implemented by the Management to improve operations. (Note
No. 38).

2. Further to above, we draw attention to the following Notes to the Financial Statements:

(i) Note No. 37 Re. Tax Deducted at Source:

(i) Note No. 39 Re. Fixed Assets;

(7ii) Note No. 41 Re. Capital Work In Progress; and

(iv) Note No. 45 Re. Loans/Guarantees granted/received.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; and

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer to Note Nos. 29(b) and 46 to the financial statements;

iL. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts and hence
there are no material foreseeable losses; and

iil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

Mukul Patel
Partner

Membership No. 032489
Place: Mumbai
Date: 15" May, 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors ‘Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2015, we report that :

iii.

v,

vi.

vii,

viii,

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals; and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase inventory and hence,
the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to two fellow subsidiaries covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of arrangement do
not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are receivable after one year but within five
years, hence the question of repayment during the year does not arise. There are no overdue
amounts exceeding Rs. One lakh as of year-end with respect to such loans granted.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of Fixed Assets and sale of Services. During the course of our audit, we
have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system. Further, the activities
carried on by the Company do not require purchase of inventory and sale of goods.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not required to maintain
cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the Central Government of India vide notification
dated | April 2014.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues, except,
income tax deducted at source. The arrears of such outstanding as of the year-end for a period of more than six
mionths from their due dates of payment is Rs. 12,655,356/

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise duty which have
not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company does not have any

amount which is pending to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made
thereunder.

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are not less than 50% of its net worth, The Company has
incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
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X,

The Company has not issued any debentures. Based on our audit procedures and according to the
information and explanations given by the management, during the year, the Company, taking into account
approved Corporate Debt Restructuring Package, has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and a Financial
Institution, the defaults wheveof are stated hereunder:

default on account of non payment of interest is stated as under :

Banks
Cash N Short Term
Credit Term Loans FITL Loan
F.Y. 2013-14 416,326 1,381,226 814 13,313,641
Apr-14 359,429 21,819,781 1,986,690 1,491,732
May-14 373,027 22,716,565 2,206,537 1,541,456
Jun-14 369,973 25,368,509 3,620,424 1,491,732 |
Jul-14 386,661 26,111,647 4,464,749 | 1,541,456
Aug-14 392,305 26,752,171 4,506,788 1,541,456
Sep-14 385,366 26,329,432 4,420,756 | 1,491,732
Oct-14 400,506 27,229,972 4,593,265 1,541,456
Nov-14 392 195 26,620,157 4,490,399 1,491,732
Dec-14 409,931 27,779,227 4,685,843 1,541,456
Jan-15 414806 | 28,062,347 | 4,733,601 1,541,456
Feb-15 379,118 25,604,964 4,319,085 1,392 282
Mar-15 424,246 28,609,313 4,825,656 1,541,456
Total | 3,103,888 | 314,385,311 48,854,608 | 31,463,241

defalult on account of won payment of principal amount of Cash Credit from a Bank is stated as under:

Cask Credit E
from a Bauk |
|

Jun-14

31,000,000 |

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has given a corporate
guarantee of Rs. 100 crores in respect of a loan granted to a fellow subsidiary, Arshiya Supply
Chain Management Private Limited, by a Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC). In our
opinion, having regard to the fact that the fellow subsidiary is also wholly owned by the Holding
Company, the terms and conditions of the guarantee given by the Company for loan granted to its
fellow subsidiary from the NBFC are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

During the year, no term loans have been obtained by the Company. Hence, the provisions of
clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

e
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xii.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and considering the size and nature of the Company's operations, no fraud of material
mgmﬁcance on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556 W)

— Mukul Patel

Partner
Membership No. 032489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15™ May, 2015
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ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

BALANCE S 31st Mar 015
(Amount in T )
Notes As at As at
31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
I. Equity And Liabilities
1. Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 4 9,55,06,260 9,55,06,260
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 3,80,08,01,099 4,38,82,72,093
3,89,63,07,359  4,48,37,78,353
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long term borrowings 6 3,26,03,80,669 3,25,81,35,704
(b) Other long term liabilities 7 9,92,500 9,92,500
(c) Long term provisions 8 5,72,333 23,42,001
3,26,19,45,502 3,26,14,70,205
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowing g 13,01,85,997 13,01,85,997
(b) Trade payables 10 91,21,943 70,75,596
(c) Other current liabilities 11 88,61,54,646 47,85,58,395
(d) Short terrn provisions 8 21,04,676 12,96,992
1,02,75,67,262 61,71,16,980
Total 8‘18[53@0:123 3§36;23!65!538
I1. Assets
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets 12 6,69,16,03,243 6,82,00,40,615
(ii) Intangible assets 13 4,08,97,766 7,36,30,478
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 1,11,66,36,527 1,13,11,38,280
7,84,91,37,536 8,02,48,09,374
(b) Non Current Investments 14 11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880
(c) Long term loans and advances 15 1,82,84,105 1,46,84,105
(d) Other Non current Asset 16 33,6?;5? 35,69,852
7,98,61,98,288 8,15,79,72,211
2, Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 17 14,69,75,365 10,31,41,594
(b) Cash and Bank balances 16 12,60,128 1,23,50,914
(c) Short term loans and advances 15 5,13,86,342 8,89,00,819
19,96,21,835 20,43,93,327
Total 8!13!58520!123 8,36,235555538
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ol
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Firm Reg. No..107556W
F AL -——'—___'_'__-
f | _-_- I(
Mukul Patel | * | @’ Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner y Director Director

Mem, No. 32489 . DIN : 00613576 DIN : 00226355

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2015

{(Amountin¥)

Notes Year Ended Year Ended

_31st March 2015 31st March 2014
I Revenue from Operations 18 2,30,10,614 8,35,52,904
II Other income 19 3,00,09,506 12,17,798
III Total Revenue (I+II) 5,30,20,120 8,47,70,702

IV Expenses

Cost of Operations 20 18,55,217 5,66,855
Employee Benefits Expense 21 1,56,55,352 3,11,11,906
Finance costs 22 40,22,43,299 41,82,25,867
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 & 13 16,05,18,138 11,21,51,868
Other expenses 23 3,71,35,436 4,41,68,295
Total expenses 61,74,07,442 60,62,24,791

V (Loss) for the year before exceptional item (III - IV) (56,43,87,322) (52,14,54,089)

VI Exceptional item (Refer Note No. 44) 2,24,33,268 (3,77,22,391)

VII (Loss) for the year (V - VI) (58,68,20,590) (48,37,31,698)
Earnings per equity share: (refer note no 27)
(1} Basic
(2) Diluted
Face value per share -T 10

(61.44)
(61.44)

(57.90)
(57.90)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For M.A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Sl

Mukul Patel
Partner
Mem. No. 32489

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
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Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00613576

MNavnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00226355
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

Particulars

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for :

Interest Income
Sundry Balances Written Back
Excess Provisions Written Back
Dividend Income
Depreciation

Interest Expenses

Operating (Loss) / Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Working Capital Changes:

Decrease / (increase) in Short term Loans and Advances
Decrease / (increase) in Long term Loans and Advances

Decrease / (increase) in Trade receiavbles
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Long Term liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current liabilities

Increase / (Decrease) in Long term Provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in Short term Provisions
Cash Generated Operatins

Taxes paid

Net Cash From Operating Activities

' Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Addition to fixed assets (including CWIP)
Investment in Equity Shares
Investments in Fixed Depsoit
Interest Received
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from share capital including premium
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing - Secured

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing - Unsecured

Repayment of Short term Borrowinas-secured
Interest Expense
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash

(Amount in T )

Year Ended Year Ended
_31st March 2015 31st March 2014
(58,68,20,590) (48,37,31,698)
(4,06,117) (3,05,568)

(2,92,42,501)

16,05,18,138 11,21,51,868
40,22,43,299 41,82,25,867
(5,37,07,771) 4,63,40,469

3,75,14,477 (29,43,546)
(34,51,749) 8,76,13,213
(4,38,33,771) 6,56,88,266
20,46,347 1,88,327

- (3,03,268)

37,72,75,650 (10,72,60,137)

(17,69,668) (8,57,583)

8,07,685 (9,37,080)
31,48,81,199 8,75,28,661

(1,48,251) (82,88,355)
(A) 31,47,32,948 7,92,40,306

1,45,01,753 (7,03,59,845)

= (11,49,08,880)

(2,97,915) (2,75,011)
4,06,117 3,05,568

(B) 1,46,09,955 {18,52,38,168)

(15,41,290)

28,08,94,849
44,71,74,432

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes :

6,33,50,900 18,22,76,562

- (37,74,55,459)
(40,22,43,299) (41,82,25,867)

(C) !34!04!33‘689! 11,46,64,516
(A+B+C) (1,10,50,786) 86,66,654
1,23,50,914 36,84,260

12,60,128 1,23,50,914

a, Cash and Cash equivalents includes : Cash T 46/-, Balances with banks in Current Accounts ¥ 1,260,082/

b. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the *Indirect Method" set out in the Accounting standard 3
"Cash Flow Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M,A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Mem. No, 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

AL Ov\z\w N 20T
: e e

Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00613576

Director

Navnit Choudhary

DIN : 00226355



Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

1. Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated on 16™ June, 2008 with the object of setting up Free Trade &
Warehousing Zones and to carry on activities pertaining to Free Trade & Warehousing Zone,
The Company was formerly known as “Arshiya Northern Logistics Infrastructure Limited”,
which name has been changed to “Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited”.

The Company has developed a Free Trade & Warehousing Zone at Khurja, District
Bulandshahar in the state of Uttar Pradesh and the Government of India vide its Notification
No. S. 0. 2793(E) dated 16™ November, 2010 has notified the aforesaid area as a Free Trade
& Warehousing Zone under the provisions of The Special Economic Act, 2005 and the Special
Economic Zones Rules, 2006.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act”) read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, provision of the Act (to the extent notified).

These financial statements are prepared by applying the “Going Concern” assumption based
on future business plans as referred in Note No. 38.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

i. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results
materialize/are known.

ii. Fixed Assets

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit
availed, if any) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except
land which is carried at cost. All costs including borrowing cost incurred during pre-
operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized.

Land is carried at its revalued amount being the estimated market value based on
revaluation report.

(b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalised
cost of software includes license fees, cost of implementation and system integration
services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which related
software is implemented.

(c) Capital work-in-progress

The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost
comprising direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

iii. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalised till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part of
cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

iv. Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Tangible Assets

Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method in
accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Intangible Assets

(i) Software (intangible asset other than (ii) below), is amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on

management'’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from
its use.

(i) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including
expenditure on implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on

management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from
its use.

V. Investments

Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition are
classified as long term and are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the
value of long term investments is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

vi. Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is
accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms.

(b) Revenue from value added services and other activities is recognized based on
completion of agreed contracted services.

(c) Interest and other income is accounted on accrual basis except where the receipt of
income is uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

vii. Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment entitlements.
a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when accrued.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The liability for Leave encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per
the Accounting Standard -15 “Employee Benefits” (AS 15) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 ('Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) :




Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

viii.

ix.

x'

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange
rates on the date of the transaction. Realised gains and losses on settlement of
foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the
year-end exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Accounting for Taxes on Income

Taxes on Income are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard - 22 on
“Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS-22) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Tax expenses
comprise both Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to/recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax
rates. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are recognized, if required, for future tax
consequence attributable to timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income that are measured at relevant enacted tax rates.

Impairment

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made
for impairment loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment
loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of
Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Provisions ,Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be
an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, but are disclosed in the
Notes. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statement.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed
and disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common
equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-
dilutive.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statement which presents the cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consis
accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.

t with the generally

" N




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

4. Share Capital (Amount in ¥ )
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Autho |
2,50,00, O'D (2,50,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 25,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
95,50,626 (95,50,626) Equity shares of T10/- each fully paid up 9,55,06,260 9,55,06,260

Total 9,55,06,260 9,55,06,260

{a) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Cempany has one class of equity share having a par value of T 10 par share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The shareholders who held shares en the record date are entitled to dividend as my be proposed by the Board of Directors and Is
subject te approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014
Number (Amountin %) Number {(Amountin¥)
Balance at the beginning of the year 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 79,46,624 7.94,66,240
Issued during the year - = 16,04 002 1,60,40,020
Balance at the close of the vear 85,50,626 __9,55.06,260 95,50,626 9,55.06,260
(c) Sharas held by the Holding Company
As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014
Number (Amount in ¥ ) Number (Amount in ¥ )
Arshiva Uimited * 95,50,626 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260.00
95,50,626 9,55,06,260 95,50,626 9,55,06,260
(d) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014
Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity Share of T 10/- fully paid up
Arshiva Limited * 95,50,626 100.00 95,50,626 100.00
Total 95,50.626 100,00 9550626 100.00

* Notes -
(i) Shares held by the Holding Company includes 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section
89 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) As per records of the Company, including its reglster of shareholders/members and other declarations received from the shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

j;-‘wr rnﬂ}-.\




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

5. Reserves and Surplus

(Amount in T )

As at Year
31st March 2015

As at Year
31st March 2014

Securities Premium Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : On Issue of Equity Shares

Less : Utilised for Stamp Duty and Other Fees paid for Increase in Share Capital

Balance at the close of the year

Revaluation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : On revaluation of land

Balance at the close of the year

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beaginning of the year
{Loss) for the year

Less: Adjustment for Depreciation (Refer Note no. 3(iv))

Balance at the close of the year

3,04,70,51,500

2,70,21,96,671
34,48,60,430
5,601

3,04,70,51,500

3,04,70,51,500

2,02,37,38,932

2,02,37,38,932

2,02,37,38,932

2,02,37,38,932

(68,25,18,339)
(58,68,20,590)
(6,50,404)

(19,87,86,641)
(48,37,31,698)

(1,26,99,89,333) (68,25,18,339)

Total 3,80,08,01,099 4,38,82,72,003
6. Long Term Borrowing {Amount In T )
MNon Current Current
As at As at As at As at

Secured:
Term Loans from Banks: (Refer Note no. 35)

dl1st March 2015 3J1st March 2014 3Jist March 2015 31st March 2014

Fund-Based Term Loans 2,12,30,92,737 2,52,33,02,920 2,14,45,381 -
Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) 33,57,29,253 43,06,86,484 2,91,93,848 -
2,45,88,21,990 2,95,39,89,404 5,06,39,229 -
Other
Term Loan 37,49,77,154 - 37,87,648
Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) 5,90,84,326 - 51,37,767
43,40,61,480 - 89,25,415 =
Unsecured:
From Holding Company (Refer note no. 26) 33,38,19,845 30,41,46,300 - -
From Fellow Subsidiaries 3,36,77,354 = = Y
36,74,97,199 30,41,46,300 - -
Total 3,26,03,80,669 3,25,81,35,704 5,95,64 644 -

(a) The Term loans and Funded Interest Term Loans are secured as under :-

(i) Securities provided

- First Pari Passu charge on fixed asets of the Company - both present and future

- First Pari Passu charge/assignment/security interest on the Company's rights under the project documents, contracts {including
guarantees) and all licenses, permits, approvals, consents and Insurance policies.

- Asslgnment of contractor guarantees, liquidated damages, letter of credit, guarantee or perfarmance under any project
agreement or contract in favour of the Company.

- Second charge on current assets.

- Personal guarantee of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company.,
- Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

- Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

{if) Rate of Interest is 12% p.a. upto 31.03.2017 and 13% p.a thereafter .

(iii) Repayment Schedule of Secured Loans is as follows :-
{Amount in ¥ )

Banks Others
Term Loans FITL Term Loans FITL

2015-2016 2,14,45,381 2,91,93,848 37,87,648 51,37,767
2016-2017 2,14,45,381 2,91,93,848 37,687,648 51,37,767
2017-2018 6,43,36,144 2,91,93,848 1,13,62,944 51,37,767
2018-2019 19,30,08,431 10,21,78,468 3,40,88,832 1,79,82,186
2019-2020 19,30,08,431 10,21,78,468 3,40,88,832 1,79,82,186
2020-2021 21,44,53,812 7,29,84,620 3,78,76,480 1,28,44,419
2021-2022 21,44,53,812 - 3,78,76,480 -
2022-2023 21,44,53,812 - 3,78,76,480 -
2023-2024 25,73,44,574 - 4,54,51,776 .
2024-2025 25,73,44,574 - 4,54,51,776 -
2025-2026 25,73,44,574 - 4,54,51,776 -
2026-2027 23,58,99,193 - 4,16,64,128 -

Total 2,14,45,38,117 36,49,23,100 37,87,64,802 6,42,22,093

b) Loan from Holding Company
Interest free quasi equity loan repayable after

I

12 months but before 5 years.




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

7. Other Long Term Liabilities {Amount in T )
As at As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Security Deposit 9,592,500 9,92,500

Total 9,92,500 9,92,500

8. Provisions

(Amount in T )

Mon Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014  31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Employee benefits
Gratuity 3,13,283 18,76,344 = 7,53,000
Leave Encashment 2,59,050 4,65,657 50,677 94,999
5,72,333 23,42,001 50,677 8,47,999
Expenses - - 20,54,000 4,48,993
- - 20,54,000 4,48,993
Total 5,72,333 23,42,001 21,04,677 12,96,992

9. Short Term Borrowings

(Amount in T )

As at As at
31st March 2015  31st March 2014

Secured:

Cash Credit From a bank 3,10,00,000 3,10,00,000

Other 9,91,85,997 9,91,85,997
Total 13,01,85,997 13,01,85.997

(a) Cash credit :

(i) Secured by:

- First Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the Company - both present and future

- Second Pari Passu charge on the assets charged for TL/FITL on first parl passu charge to lender.
- Personal guarantee of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company.
- Pledge of 4,052,778 Equity Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

- Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company.

{ii) Rate of Interest on Cash Credit Loan : Base Rate + 3 % p.a.

(b) Other:
(i) Secured by:

- First pari-passu charge on the Current Assets and Fixed Assets of the Company, both present and future.
- Further secured by First pari-passu charge on entire cashflows, receivables and book debts of the Company, both present and

future

- Personal guarantees of two Directors of the Company, being Promoters of the Holding Company,
-Corporate Guarantee of Arshiya Limited (Holding Company).

(ii) Rate of Interest is 1.75% below RCL Prime Lending Rate.

(iii) Particulars of defaults of Principal amount as of 31.03.2015 are as under:

Period of Default Amount of
Default (in T)

Cash Credit
Short Term Loan

30-Jun-14 3,10,00,000
30-Jun-13 9,91,85,997

10. Trade Payables

(Amount in T )

Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 31)

As at As at
31st March 2015 3ist March 2014
91,21,943 70,75,596

Tatal 91,211,943 70,75,596




ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

11. Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in T )

As at

As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Current maturities of Long-term Secured Loans: (Refer Note No. 35)

Loans from Banks:
Term Loans
FITL

Loans from Others:
Term Loans
FITL

Interest accrued and due
On Term Loans from Banks

2
2

14,45,381
91

,93,848

37,87,648
51,37,767

5,95,64,645

26,63,32,432

On FITL from Banks 4,06,91,251 14,68,929
On Term Loans from Others 4,80,52,878 -
On FITL from Others B1,63,357 =)
On Cash Credit from Bank 51,03,888 7.88,960
On Short Term loan 3,14,63,242 1,66,84,050
39,98,07,048 1,89,41,939
Other Liabiliti
Project Creditors (Refer Note No. 31) 40,27,26,480 43,29,41,631
Employees' Dues 61,60,053 84,56,880
40,88,86,532 44,13,98,512
Tax Deducted at Source 1,43,60,281 1,57,32,852
Provident Fund 64,826 47,854
Labour Weifare fund 48 48
Works Contract Tax 13,774 1,51,738
Interest payable on unpaid Tax Deducted at Source 34,57,492 22,85,452
1,78,96,422 1,82,17,944
Total 88,61,54,646 47,85,58,395

(i) Detail of unpaid term loan and funded interest term loan from Bank and other as on 31-03-2015 is as follows :-

(Amount inT)

Banks Others
Period of Default Term Loans FITL Term Loans FITL
F.¥Y. 2013-14 13,81,226 814 - -
Apr-14 1,80,84,019 13,47,006 37,.35,762 6,39,684
May-14 1,88,16,920 15,39,023 38,99,645 6,67,514
Jun-14 2,15,43,902 29,68,694 38,24,607 6,51,730
Jul-14 2,21,34,561 37,90,262 39,77,086 6,74,487
Aug-14 2,27,83,167 38,32 301 39,69,004 6,74,487
Sep-14 2,23,52,346 37,48,624 39,77,086 6,72,132
Oct-14 2,31,31,794 38,98,241 40,98,178 6,95,024
Nov-14 2,26,13,757 38,10,940 40,06,400 6,79,459
Dec-14 2,35,98,023 39,76,811 41,81,204 7,09,032
lan-15 2,38,38,529 40,17,342 42,23,818 7.16,259
Feb-15 2,17,51,020 36,65,548 38,53,944 6,53,537
Mar-15 2,43,03,168 40,95,644 43,06,145 7,30,012
Total 26,63,32,432 4,06,91,251 4,80,52,879 81,63,357
(ii) Detail of unpaid Interest on short term loan from others and Cash Credit from Banks as on 31-03-2015 is as follows :-
[Amount in %)
Peri ult s Cash Credit |
F.Y. 2013-14 1,33,13.841 4,16.326
Apr-14 14,91,732 3,59,429
May-14 15,41.456 3.73.027
Jun-14 14,91.732 3.69.973
Jul-14 15,41.456 3.86.661
Aug-14 15.41.456 3.92.305
Sep-14 14,91,732 3.85.366
Oct-14 15,41,456 4,00,506
MNov-14 14,91,732 3.92,195
Dec-14 15.41,456 4,09,931
Jan-15 15.41.456 4.14.806
Feb-15 13,92,283 3.79.118
Mar-15 15,41.456 4,24,246
Total 3,14,63,241
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ARSHIYA NORTHERN FTWZ LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

Note 14 Non- Current Investment {Amgunt in ¥ )
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

(Trade and Unquoted)

In Equity Shares

478,787 (478,787) Equity Shares of T 10/- each, 11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880
fully paid up of Arshiya Supply Chain Management

Private Limited

Total 11,49,08,880 11,49,08,880

14.1 The Company has invested in 4,78,787 Equity Shares of Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary, of T
10/- each at a premium of ¥ 230/- per share aggregating to T 11,49 08,880/- against cansideration by discharge of part of its Trade
Receivables.

14.2 In the opinion of the Management, the erosion of net worth of the Investee Company is considered temporary in nature, in view of
the expected developments In relation to long term Business Strategies and in-built synergies of the Company. Hence, diminution in the
value of Investment s not considered necessary.

15. Loans and Advances {Amount in ¥ )
Mon Current Current

As at As at As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014 31ist March 2015 31st March 2014

{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Capital Advances = 1,14,00,000 =
Deposits (Refer Note No. 26) 1,82,84,105 32,84,105 .
(a) 1,82,84,105 1,46,84,105 - -
Loan and Advances to Related Parties
Unsecured, considered good - E 18,60,412 =
- - 18,60,412 =
Other Loans and Advances
Prepaid expenses - - 5.80,989 20,40,337
Income Tax Payments - : §2,33,294 4,97,14,479
Other Advances - E 21,79,897 16,40,379
Indirect Taxes Receivables (Refer Note Mo. 42) - . 3,75,31,750 3,55,05,624
(B) - - 4,95,25,930 8,89,00,819
Total (a+b) 1,82,84,105 1,46,84,105 5,13,86,342 8,89,00,819
Detail of balances of Loans and Advances to Related Parties are as follows :- {Amount in T )
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 8,50,912 .
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited 10,098,500 -
18,60,412 -
16. Cash and Bank Balances (Amount in ¥ )
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March 2015 _31st March 2014 3ist March 2015 31st March 2014
Balances with Schedule banks:
In current accounts - - 12,60,082 1,23,50,868
Cash on hand £ = 46 46
{As Certified by the Management)
- - 12,60,128 1,23,50,914
Other
In Margin Deposit Account * 38,67,767 35,689,852 - =
38,67,767 35,69,852 - -
Total 38,67,767 35,69,852 12,60,128 1,23,50,914

* Represents Margin Money kept with a Scheduled Bank against issue of gu
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17. Trade Receivables

{Amount In %)

As at

As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

(Unsecured, considered good)

Qutstanding for a period

Exceeding Six Months from the date they were due for payment 13,67,72,582 4,61,93,815
Others 1,02,02,783 5,69,47,779
Total 14,69,75,365 10,31,41,5%4

17.1 Includes T 145,978,652/~ (P.Y. T 102,630,337/-) due from Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary.

17.2 In the opinion of the Management, the Book Debts due from Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited, a fellow
subsidiary, are good for recovery in view of long term business plans and future strategies of the Company which shall

eventually improve its ability to pay the Book Debts.

18. Revenue from operations

{Amount in T }

Year Ended 31st

Year Ended

March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Income from warehousing and handling business 2.30,10,614 8.35,52,904
Tatal 2,30,10,614 8,35,52,904

19, Other Income

(Amount in T )

Year Ended 31ist

Year Ended

March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Interest 4,06,117 3,05,568
Sundry Balances Written Back 2,92,42,501 n

Excess Provisions Written Back - 5,04,498

Miscellaneous Income [includes T 33,615/- (P.Y. ¥ 92,996/-) exchange gain] 3,60,888 4,07,732

Total 3,00,09,506 12,17,.798

20. Cost of Operations

(Amount in T )

Year Ended 31st

Year Ended

March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Direct costs 18.55.2
Total 18,55,217 5,66,855
21. Employee Benefits Expense {Amount in ¥ )
Year Ended 31st Year Ended

March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Salaries and Wages 1,47,45,863 2,91,27,748

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds 2,81,474 7.39.420

Employee Welfare and other amenities 6,28,015 12,44,738

Total 1,56,55,352 3,11,11,906

22. Finance costs (Amount in? )
Year Ended 31st Year Ended

March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Interest on Borrowings 39,89,77,311 41,16,38,009
Interest on unpaid Tax Deducted at Source 12,52,696 20,26,977
Other borrowing costs 20,13,292 45,60,881
Total 40,22 43,299 41,82 25 B67
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23. Other Expenses {Amount in T )
Year Ended 31st Year Ended
March, 2015  31st March. 2014
Power & Fuel 97,65,652 98,324,470
Repairs and Maintenance
- Building 11,02,425 15,59,622
- Others 1,00,616 19,07,599
Security expenses 90,83,617 78,91,170
Housekeeping expenses 46,32,812 33,45,536
Insurance 19,49,657 63,18,798
Rates & Taxes 2,09,555 1,449,987
Legal and Professional fees 45,74,847 40,51,603
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 20,56,831 26,91,484
Vehicle expenses 10,90,926 16,96,003
Communication expenses 2,68,586 5,38.068
Printing and Stationery 67,718 1,28,433
Bad Debts 98,980 -
Exchange difference - 3,10,443
Advertisement and Business Promation expenses 8,747 7,711
Audi n i
-Audit fees 5,00,000 2,53,438
- Out of Pocket Expenses - 3,438
= Other services - 3,50,000
Miscellaneous expenses 16,24,467 31,330,492
Total 3,71,35,436 4.41,68,295
-

¥
/ )

fis:r

)
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24. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

The disclosures as required as per the revised AS 15 are as follows:

a. Brief description of the plans

The Company has various schemes for long-term benefits such as provident fund and
gratuity. The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund and Employees
State Insurance where the Company has no further obligation beyond making the
contributions. The Company’s defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees of the

Company are also entitled to leave encashment as per the Company's policy.

b. Defined Contribution plan

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of

Profit and Loss:

Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund *

[Includes Administrative Charges, EDLI charges and Employers'

Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995]

T 281,474/-
(¥ 739,420/-)

C. Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (unfunded)
(Amount in )
PARTICULARS As at As at
31 March, 31 March,
2015 2014
I-Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets 9.00% 8.70%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 10.00%
II-Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 2,685,650 2,341,535
Service Cost 607,784 529,821
Interest Cost 249,497 187,323
Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) = =
Liability Transferred in/(out) = 254,248
Benefits Paid - i
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (3,164,031) (627,277)
Liability at the End of the Year 378,800 2,685,650
ITII-Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of Planned assets at the beginning of the 56,306 56,306
year
Expected Return on plan assets 4,899 4,899
Contributions = --
Transfer from other company - =
Benefits Paid - =
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 4,312 (4,899)
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 65,517 56,306
IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Asset 4,899 4,899
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets 4,312 (4,899)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 9,211 7=
V. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period 378,800 (2,685,650)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 65,5 56,306
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Difference 313,283 2,629,344
Unrecognized past service cost - --
Liability recognized in balance sheet 313,283 2,629,344
VI. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
Insured managed Fund N.A. | N.A
VII. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 607,684 529,821
Interest Cost 249,497 187,323
Expected return on Plan Assets (4,899) (4,899)
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (3,168,343) (622,378)
Past Service cost = =2
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss** (2,316,061) 89,867
VIII. Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability 2,629,344 2,285,229
Expense as Above (2,316,061) 89,867
Employers Contribution - --
Net Transfers from Other Companies = 254,248
Closing Net Liability 313,283 2,629,344
IX .Expected Employers contribution in the Next year
As per Actuarial Valuation report 1,000 | 753,000
X. Experience Adjustment
On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss (3,181,949) (557,457)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain 4,312 (4,899
d. Defined Benefit Plan —Leave Encashment(unfunded):
(Amount in ¥)
PARTICULARS As at As at
31% March, 31° March,
2015 2014
I-Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets = 2
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15.00% 10.00%
II-Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 560,656 2,610,693
Service Cost 168,157 237,356
Interest Cost 52,085 208,855
Liability Transferred in - 167,885
Liability transferred Out = ==
Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) = i
Curtailment - --
Benefits Paid - (1,017,368)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (471,171) (1,646,765)
Liability at the End of the Year 309,727 560,656
III-Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of Planned assets at the beginning of the = -
year
Expected Return on plan assets = -
Contributions - --
Transfer from other company - --
Benefits Paid - .-
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss = =2
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year =

Total Actuarial gain/({Loss) to be Recognized

e
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25.

VI .Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected Return on Plan Assets Z <=

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets = 55

Actual Return on Plan Assets i o7

V. Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Liability at the end of the year 309,727 (560,656)

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year

Difference 309,727 (560,656)
Unrecognized past service cost = =
Liability recognized in balance sheet 309,727 (560,656)

VI .Expenses Recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 168,157 237,356
Interest Cost 52,085 208,855
Expected return on Plan Assets = iy
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (471,171) (1,646,765)
Curtailment = =
Past Service cost - --
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss (250,929) (1,200,554)
VII Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability 560,656 2,610,693

Expense as Above (250,929) (1,200,554)
Employers Contribution ek (1,017,368)

Net Transfers from Other Companies - 167,885
Closing Net Liability 309,727 560,656
VIII Experience Adjustments:

On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss 5 (1,600,810)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain A i

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in the Free Trade & Warehousing Zone business. In the
opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set of risk and returns
and hence the same has been considered as representing the single primary segment.

The Company provides services within India and it doesn‘t have any operation in economic
environments with different risk and returns. Hence it is considered that the Company is
operating in single gecgraphical segment.
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26.

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 "“Related Party

Disclosures” as given below:

S.No

Name of Related Party

Relationship

Arshiya Limited

Holding Company

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

QbW N=

Welldone Software Consultancy Private Limited

Enterprise

KMP's/Relatives
significant influence

which
have

over

7 Mr. Ajay S. Mittal
8 Mrs. Archana Mittal - Director
9 Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

-~ Director

Key

Personnel (KMP)

Management

Note:

The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of
the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by the auditors.

The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were

as follows:

(ii) Summary of significant related party transactions (as

identified by the

management) carried out in the ordinary course of business are as follows :

{(Amount in ¥)

Entrerprise over

which
A LIy : KMP/Relatives
Transactions Fellow Subsidiaries Holding Company i hiclang
significant
Influence
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 | 31-Mar-15 | 31-Mar-14
Share Capital
Share Capital held as at - . e -
the beginning of the year 95,509,260 79,466,240
Issue of Shares during
the year (excluding = = = 16,040,020 .
securities premium)
Share Capital held as at o } ¥
the end of the year 95,509,260 95,509,260
Loan Taken
Balance as at the W _
T S — 304,146,300 121,869,738 |
';22': RIS T 33,677,354 | 159,412,055 35,087,508 | 583,488,412 1 -
Loan (Repaid)/(adjusted) | g -
dirting Hie vear (159,412,055) (5,413,962) | (120,311,400)
Conversion of Share = 3 .
Application money i - &0,000,000
Issue of Equity Shares
including Securities -- = -- | (360,900,450) e -
Premium
Balance as at the end =
of the year 33,677,354 - 333,819,845 304,146,300
Loan Given -
Balance as at the i - - = = =
beginning of the year
Loan Given during the 2,279,795 e = m —

-

e
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year

Loan (Repaid)/(adjusted)
during the year

(419,383)

Balance as at the
end of the year

1,860,412

Investment in
Equity Shares

114,508,880

114,908,880

Account Receivable
as at the beginning
of the year

102,630,337

168,489,707

Services Provided

20,451,630

79,813,294

Amount
Received/Credit
Notes/TDS
deducted

(17,130,442)

(30,763,784)

TDS reversed

40,017,627

Adjusted against
investment in
Equity Shares

(114,908,880)

Account
Receivable as at
the end of the
year

145,978,652

102,630,337

Security Deposit
Given

-- | 15,000,000

Corparate
guarantees/securiti
es given

1,000,000,000

850,000,000

Corporate
guarantees/securiti
es received

300,000,000

300,000,000

3,482,441,159

3,070,606,475

27. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share is the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the year (Including the pending allotments)

Computation of Earnings Per Share

1 (Basic and Diluted) fpiania 251
Net (Loss) attributable to Shareholders () (586,820,590) | (483,731,698)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for basic and 9,550,626 8,355,315
Diluted
Nominal Value per share () 10 10
Earning Per Share - Basic(3) (61.44) (57.90)
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28.

29‘

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income:

According to the Company, the present business activity of "Free Trade & Warehousing
Zone"” shall be eligible for deductions under section 80-IAB of the Income Tax Act, 1961
for ten consecutive assessment years falling within a period of fifteen assessment years
beginning with the assessment year 2012-13 ie. the year, the Company started
commercial operations.

In view of the loss for the year, no provision for taxation has been made,
In absence of virtual certainty of generating adequate future taxable income, Deferred Tax

Asset for the year is not recognised.

Contingent liability not provided for in respect of:
(Amount in )

. As at As at
Rarticulars 31% March, 2015 | 31% March, 2014
Guarantees/Securities to a  Non-Banking | 1,00,00,00,000 85,00,00,000
Finance Company in respect of loan taken by a
fellow subsidiary, .
(b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged 10,00,99,646 =
as Debt
(c) _Right to recompense by Secured Lenders 18,80,00,000 10,10,00,000
30. Capital and Other Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (net of advances paid) ¥ Nil (previous year ¥ 4,21,41,597/-).
31. Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure, if
any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest payable as required
under the said act have not been given.
32. Details of foreign currency transactions/balances not hedged by derivative
instruments or otherwise are as under:
Foreign currency transactions/balances of the Company are not hedged by derivative
instruments or otherwise. The details of foreign currency transactions/ balances of the
Company are:
Particulars Foreign currency amount Equivalent amount
L - . (in3)
Asat | Asat As at As at
Balances Currency March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
= | | 2015 2014 | 2015 | 2014
Accounts usD 14,655 17,185 8,88,607 1,040,575
 receivable | ) ! | S
Accounts EURO 1,998 1,177 1,37,107 95,910 |
receivable -
Project usp 22,72,231 21,81,947
Creditors - - -
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Foreign Currency Transactions
Earnings in foreign currency:
(Amount in %)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Es March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 |
Income from FTWZ operations 2,742,874 2,717,636
Total 2,742,874 2,717,636

33. Preparation of financial statements on “Going Concern” basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a “"Going concern” basis in
view of:

(a) Package under Corporate Debt Restructuring approved by the Secured Lenders.
(b) The Restructuring of the Business Operations by a fellow subsidiary. (Refer note no. 38).

34. Scheme of Amalgamation

(a)The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 24.01.2014 approved
Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under Section 391/394 of the Companies Act,
1956 of amalgamation of the Company with Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited
(amalgamated company). The Scheme also provides for amalgamation of Arshiya
Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (amalgamating company) with the amalgamated
company. The Equity Shareholders of the respective Companies have approved the
scheme.

(b)The Scheme inter-alia provides that:

(i) On and from 01.01.2014 (the appointed date), the entire businesses and the whole
of the undertakings of the Company as “Going Concern” with all assets, properties
and liabilities shall stand transferred and vested in the amalgamated company.

(ii) Issue and allotment by the amalgamated company of 1 (one) fully paid equity
share of ¥ 10/- each for every equity share of ¥ 10/- each held by the shareholders
of the Company as consideration.

(iiiy Transactions between the appointed date and effective date of the Company shall
be for and on behalf of the amalgamated company.

(€)The Scheme is filed with Hon. High Court of Bombay on 27.03.2014 and is pending for
approval.
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35. Corporate Debt Restructuring(CDR)

35.1 During the previous year, Secured Lenders (Banks) have approved the restructuring
package under “Corporate Debt Restructuring Package” (CDR), which inter-alia provides
for:

(a) (i) Reschedulement of the Principal amounts of the loans and dates thereof.
(i) Funding of unpaid interest on the Term Loans for the period from November 2012
to March 2014,
(iii)  Waiver of all liquidated damages/penal charges/penal interest/excess interest i.e.
in excess of documented rates of all the facilities from the cut-off date i.e. 1%
November, 2012 till the implementation of the package.

(b) A right to recompense in favour of Secured Lenders.

35.2 This year, the Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service the
loan repayments/interest payments which resulted into Company’'s borrowings becoming
"Non Performing Assets” {NPA's) with the Banks.

35.3 Such defaults entitle the CDR lenders to reverse the waiver/sacrifices granted by them,
which is estimated to be ¥ 188,000,000/~ as on 31%' March, 2015.

35.4 During the year, a lender, State Bank of Travancore (SBT) who was part of the "Corporate
Debt Restructuring” (CDR) has assigned its respective outstanding dues in favour of
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company (EARC) on the same terms and conditions as
applicable to said lender.

36. Provision for Interest

The Company has provided interest for the year:

(a) In respect of loans from banks, on the basis of statements received from them and in
absence thereof, as per the concessional rates (excluding penal interest) as mentioned
in Letter Of Approval (LOA) under the CDR.

(b) In respect of loans assigned to EARC, on the basis of balance confirmations received
from them.

37. Tax Deducted at Source
During the year,

(a) The Company had deducted income tax at source (TDS) aggregating to ¥
3,162,330/~ during the earlier years from the amounts payable to various parties. The
Company has not paid the said TDS to the government on assumption that such
parties would have paid their income tax dues on the income declared by them in the
respective years. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has transferred an
amount of ¥ 3,162,330/- back to the respective parties.

(b) The Company has written back an aggregate amount of ¥ 1,053,643/- representing
interest on unpaid tax deducted at source provided in earlier years on the premise
that since the corresponding tax deducted is not payable as mentioned in Note no.
(a) above, interest thereon is not payabile.
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38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Revival Plans

In spite of world class facilities possessed by the Company, various reasons affecting
revenues and margins are as follows:

Lack of Electronic Data Interchange (EDI).
Delay in duty drawback facility for customers.

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (AIDHL), a fellow subsidiary is in the process
of restructuring its business by moving from Industrial Hub to Inland Container Depot
(ICD), which shall result into the Company attracting cargo from the ICD and resolving
the EDI connectivity at the Company's facility.

Further, the existing rail infrastructure facility of a fellow subsidiary, Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited, adjacent to the ICD would facilitate speedy and efficient movement
of containers which shall be the Company’s Unique Selling Proposition.

The above restructuring of business by the Company along with the fellow subsidiaries
shall enable it to achieve sustainable operations.

Fixed Assets

In view of the revival plans of the Company as referred to in note no. 38, in the opinion
of management, the carrying value of the Fixed Assets are not estimated to be lower
than the recoverable values and hence, no provision for impairment of Fixed Assets is
called for.

The Company has aligned its depreciation policy in accordance with Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 1 April, 2014 and has accordingly provided
depreciation based on revised respective useful life of the assets. Till previous year, the
Company provided depreciation on Straight Line Method basis as per the rates prescribed
in Schedule XIV of Companies Act, 1956. This change has resulted into current year
depreciation being higher by ¥ 50,706,905/-

Capital Work-in-Progress [CWIP]

(a) The Company has suspended capital expenditure on Phase II due to non optimum

utilisation of existing capacity. The Management expects to complete Phase II
during implementation of Revival Plans for which the necessary funds are in the
process of being tied-up. In the opinion of the Management, the deferment of
implementation of Phase II has not impaired the future economic life of the assets
held under Capital Work-in-Progress at this juncture and hence, no provision for
impairment of assets is called for.

(b) During the year, the management decided to discontinue further development of its

Software for Warehouse Management and hence, a sum of T 14,074,976/~ is written
off.

Indirect Taxes Receivable

Other Loans and Advances includes:
(a) Refunds receivable in respect of VAT, Service Tax, Local Entry Tax and Service Tax in

respect of prior years aggregating to ¥ 14,270,271/- as claimed by the Company for which
Orders are awaited.

(b) Refund of Service Tax in respect of Financial Year 2010-11 for ¥ 4,210,469/- for which

appeal is pending with Commissioner of Appeals, Central Excise.
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(c) Refunds of Excise Duty, VAT and CST aggregating to ¥ 17,024,884/~ for the Financial Year
2010-11 for which the appeals are pending with the respective Appellate Tribunals.

The Management is of the view that the refunds claimed as above are considered good for
recovery on account of refunds being received by other SEZ developers on similar
grounds.

43. The Company has given second charge on all its assets to Capital First Limited to secure the
Term Loan of Rs., 100 Crores (Previous Year Rs. 85 Crores) granted to Arshiya Supply Chain
Management Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary. The amount outstanding of the said loan
as on 31st March, 2015 is ¥ 660,455,555/~ (P.Y. T Nil).

44. Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under:

(Amountin?
Sr. | Exceptional items 2015 2014
No.
1 Capital Advance Written Off 11,400,000 -=
2 Interest on delayed payment of (1,053,643) =
TDS written back (Refer Note No.
37)
3 Unpaid Balances Written Back (1,988,065) -=
4 Capital Work-in-Progress Written 14,074,976 ==
Off (Refer Note No. 41(b))
5 Interest waiver on Restructuring e (37,722,391)
of Secured Loans
Total 22,433,268 (37,722,391)

45. The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013
as regards inter Company advances/loans/guarantees granted/received to/from group
companies are not applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of
business.

46. Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/cases/other legal proceedings
for recovery of the amounts due to them which are at different stages before the respective
judicial forums/authorities. Claims by the said lenders and creditors have been contested by
the Company in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this
juncture to estimate the financial implications of such claims.

47. Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payables
and Other liabilities other than due from/to Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries are subject to
confirmations. Adjustments, if any, shall be made in the financial statements of the year in
which such differences are accepted.

48. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recast
wherever necessary to conform to those of current year presentation.
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Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W
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Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner . Director Director
Mem. No.: 32489 DIN: 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15" May, 2015
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members Of Arshiya Rail Siding And Infrastructure Limited.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. '

o
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2015;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and
(c)  in the case of the Cash Ilow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

)



d. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

- [ ‘«.1. \
/WMW (s Q)\/J A
MUKUL M. PATEL N
Partmer

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 150 May, 2015



iii.

iv.

Vi.

vii,

Annexure to the Independent Auditors” Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31%t March 2015, we report that:

The Company does not have any fixed assets. Therefore, the requirements of Clause
3(i) of the Order are not applicable.

The nature of the business of the Company does not require it to purchase any
inventory and hence, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company

The Company has not granted any loans to any party, covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence clause 3(iii) of
the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the purchase fixed assets and sale of services. We have
not noticed any major weaknesses in the internal control system during the course of
audit

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant provision of
the Companies Act 2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations obtained, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Act
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2013 notified by the
Central Government of India vide notification dated 1 April 2014.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
) P & &
books and records as produced before us, in our opinion, there is no delay in
payment of tax deducted at source by the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us there were no
amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. Hence clause 3(vii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

-
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viii.

ix.

x1.

x1i.

The Company’s accumulated losses have exceeded 50% of its net worth. The Company
has incurred cash losses in the current as well as in the preceding financial year.

The Company did not have any dues to banks, financial institution and debenture
holder during the year. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
guarantee for loan taken by others from banks or financial institutions. Hence,
provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any term loan during the year and hence, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

To the best our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and considering the size and nature of Companies
operations, no fraud of material significance on or by the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mulkul M. Patel
Partner

Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15% May, 2015.



ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015

Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Current Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other current liabilities

Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Bank balances

Total

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

—

/WSl SRR
Mukul Patel (5~ e\
Partner { MUNRG 2
Mem. No. 32489 N S

Place : Mumbai
Dated : 15th May, 2015

Notes

2

As at

31st March, 2015
(Amount in %)

As at

31st March, 2014
(Amount in %)

5,00,000 5,00,000
(4,90,772) (4,48,274)
71,038 54,188
25,648 -
1,05,914 1,05,914
1,05,914 1,05,914
1,05,914 1,05,914

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited

T T,

Ajay S Mittal
Director
DIN : 00226355

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN : 00613576




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(Amount in ) (Amount in )

Revenue:
Total Revenue = ——
Expenses:
Other expenses 8 42,498 3,44,354
Total expenses 42,498 3,44,354
Profit before tax (42,498) (3,44,354)
Current Tax - =
Deferred Tax - =
Profit / (Loss) for the year (42,498) (3,44,354)

Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted (0.85) (6.89)
[nominal value of share Rs. 10 each] (Refer Note No. 9)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M.A. Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Reg. No. 107556 W Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited
wan” A g . N Gas i ©
WS el O ‘S‘*“—"—‘\L"ﬁ-——\ i i
Mukul Patel TN Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner W Director Director
Mem. No. 32489 — DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai A=
Dated : 15th May, 2015 g - al



Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Notes to the financial staten:ants

1. Corporate Information

Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company”), incorporated on 10.02.2010
shall be engaged primarily in the business of setting up/developing/obtaining rail siding
infrastructure/network in India for operation/movament of container/cargo/freight trains.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies
(i) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by ~he Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, provision of the Act (to the extent notified).

(ii) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The difference batween the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the year in which the results materialize/are known.

(iii) Revenue recognition

! Revenue from rail and ancillary operations are azcounted on the basis of delivery of cargo,
I considering substantial completion of contracted services. While recognizing the revenue 7 of
the following month is taken as cutoff date for determining the delivery of cargo vis-3-vis
completion of contracted services.

Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on
accrual basis as per agreed terms.

Revenue from value added services and other activities is recognized based on completion of
| agreed contracted services,

Interest and other income is acceunted on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is
uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

{iv) Accounting for Taxes on income

Taxes on Income are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard - 22 on
"Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS-22) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
{ India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with Rule 7 of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Tax expenses comprise both Current Tax and Deferred
Tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to be recovered from the tax
authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are recognized, if
required, for future tax consequence attributable to timing difference between taxable income
and accounting income that are measured at relevant cnacteg tax rates.
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Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(v) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources, Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in the Notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statement.

(vi) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is comnuted and disclosed using the weighted average number of
common shares oulstanding during the vear, Dilutive earnings per share is computed and

disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent
shares outstanding during the year, except when the results wouid be anti-dilutive.

(vii) Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.

{' '.'g;‘\-' ) \




ARSHIYA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31-Mar-2015
(Amount in )

31-Mar-2014
(Amount in T)

Authorised
50,000 {50,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 5.00,000 5,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
50,000 (50,000) Equity shares of T10/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000 5,00,000
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Ordinary Equity Share
31-Mar-2015 31-Mar-2014

Number [(Amountin?) Number (Amount in T)
Shares outstanding at the beginning 50,000 5,00,000 50,000 5,00,000
of the vear
Issued during the year = . = .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 50,000 5,00,000 50,000 5,00,000

b) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares

The Company has only ane class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10/- per share.
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends to the
shareholders who are holding the shares an record date which is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders after
distribution of all preferential amounts,

c) Shares held by the Holding company

31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014

Number Number
Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited 50.000 50.000
Total 50,000 50,000

Note :- Shares held by the holding company includes 600 shares fully pald up, held through declaration of
beneficial interest as per Section 187C of the Companies Act, 1956,

d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in

the Company
31-Mar-2015 31-Mar-2014
Amount ()| % of holding] Amount (?) | % of holding
Equity Share of T 10/- fully paid up
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 5,00,000 100 5,00,000 100
Tota! | 5,00,000 100 5,00,000 i00

Mote :-

Shares held by the Holding company includes 600 share fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial
interest as per Section 187C of the Companies Act, 1956,




ARSHIYA RAIL SIPING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014
Amount in ¥ | Amount in ¥
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (4,48,274) (1,03,920)
{Loss) for the year {42,498) (3,44,354)
Closing Balance (4,90,772)| (4,48,274)
Total Reserves and Surplus Total (4,90,772) (4,48,274)
5. TRADE PAYABLES
31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014
Amount in ¥ | Amount in ¥
Trade Payables 71,038 54,188
(Refer No. 11)
Total 71,038 54,188
6. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014
Amountin¥ | Amount in¥
Advance from Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 25,648 -
Total 25,648 -
7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014
Amount in¥ | Amountin
Cash and cash equivalents - Current
Balances with a bank
In current account 1,05,914 1,05,914
Total 1,05,914 1,05,914
8. OTHER EXPENSES :
31-Mar-2015| 31-Mar-2014
Amountin¥ | Amountin ¥
Legal and Professional Fees 18,500 5,618
Miscellaneous expenses 8,998 2,658
Auditors remuneration - Audit fees 15,000 11,236
Travel expenses - 3,24,842
Total 42,498 3,44,354
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ARSH1YA RAIL SIDING AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

Computation of Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) 31-Mar-2015 31-Mar-2014
Net (Loss) attributable to shareholders (42,498) (3.44,354)
Weiahted averaae number of equity shares Qutstanding 50.000 50,000
Nominal value per share (3) 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS {0.85) (6.89)

Deferred Tax

In absence of virtual certainty of generating adeqguate future taxable income, Deferred Tax Asset for the year is not

recognised.

Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company has not received any intimation from “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end
together with interest payable as required under the said Act have not been given.

Previous Year Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recast wherever necessary to conform to those

of current year presentation.

As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiva Rail Sidina and Infrastructure Limited

Firm Reqistration No. 107556W

VSNt

& > Aijav S. Mittal
Mukul Patel ' !Qp% V; Director
Partner \ DIN : 00226355
Membership No.: 32489 \_

Place: Mumbai
Dated : 15th May. 2015
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

‘To,
The Members of
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (*the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial control systems over financial reporting and the operating
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effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31* March, 2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter
1. The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:

(a) All the secured borrowings turning into Non Performing Assets (refer Note no. 35).

(b) Substantial Creditors remaining outstanding to be paid.

(¢) Unpaid full and final employees’ dues amounting to Rs. 7,075,060/-.

(d) Unpaid statutory dues amounting to Rs. 11,127 ,706/-.

Despite the foregoing, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis in view of the
following:

() “Corporate Debt Restructuring” approved by the Secured Lenders (Banks) (Note no 35).
(i1) Future Business Plans which would result into higher revenues and margins. (Note No. 37).

2. Further to above, we draw attention to the following Notes to the Financial Statements:

(i) Note No. 38 Re. Tax Deducted at Source;
(ii) Note No. 41 Re. Fixed Assets; and
(iii) Note No. 46 Re. Loans/Guarantees granted/received.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; and

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer to Note Nos. 30 (f) and 47 to the financial statements;

11 The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts and hence
there are no material foreseeable losses; and

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556 W)

>
@\ WS

Mukul Patel
Partner

Membership No. (032489
Place; Mumbai

Date: 15™ May, 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

As referred to in the Annexure to the Independent Auditors ‘Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2015, we report that :

ii.

i,

iv.

Vi

vil,

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals; and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(a) As explained to us, the inventories of stores and spares were physically verified during the year
by the Management at reasonable intervals.

(b)) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures
of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to three parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of arrangement do not
stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are receivable after one year but within five years,
hence the question of repayment during the year does not arise. There are no overdue amounts
exceeding Rs, One lakh as of year-end with respect to such loans granted.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, there s an adequate
internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of Inventory and Fixed Assets and sale of Services. During the course of
our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system. Further, the
activities carried on by the Company do not require sale of goods.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence, the directions of the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and its rules, are not applicable. Hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of services
rendered pursuant to rules made by Government of India with regard to the maintenance of cost
records as prescribed under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed basic cost records have been made and maintained. We
have, however, not made detailed examination of cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues, excepr,
income tax deducted at source and work contract tax. The arrears of such outstanding as of the year-end for a
period of more than six months from their due dates of payment are Rs. 7,414,367/- and Rs. 1,231,673/-
respectively.
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viii.

ix.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise duty which have
not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
amount which is pending to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made
thereunder.

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are not less than 50% of its net worth. The Company has
incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

The Company has not issued any debentures. Based on our audit procedures and according fo the
information and explanations given by the management, during the year, the Company, taking into account
approved Corporate Debr Restructuring Package, has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and a Financial
Institution, the defaults whereof are stated hereunder:

default on account of non payment of interest is stated as under :

Banks
Period of Term Loans FITL Short Term Working
Default Loan Capital Term
Loan

F.Y. 2013-14 i . 1,885,458 -
Apr-14 . . 1,635,157 -
May-14 336,810 2,548,280 1,687,656 3,548,971
Jun-14 10,060,394 4,129,052 1,634,596 4,320,122
Jul-14 44,836,938 9,878,804 1,689,513 4,467,333
Aug-14 47,123,783 | 11,553,829 1,692,736 4,474,673
Sep-14 45,813,823 | 12,080,195 1,710,819 4,514,797
Oct-14 48,447,012 | 12,464,844 1,742,018 4,454,646
Nov-14 47,318,917 | 12,016,378 1,703,435 4,354,884
Dec-14 47,912,021 | 12,162,866 1,778,011 4,397,836
Jan-15 52,627,634 | 16,310,121 1,796,585 5,038,636
Feb-15 46,868,303 | 12,386,978 1,639,674 4,295,808
Mar-15 52,245,861 | 12,875,904 1,832,482 4,804,302
Total | 443,591,496 | 118,407,251 22,428,140 | 48,695,008

-
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default on account of non payment of principal amounts are stated as under :

Banks
Period of Term Loans EITL | Working Cash Credit
Default Capital Term
Loan

Jul-14 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667 | 150,210,600
Aug-14 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667 B
Sep-14 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667

Oct-14 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667

Nov-14 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667

| Decl4 1,986,021 1,001,319 | 2,306,667

Jan-15 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667

Feb-15 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667

Mar-15 1,986,021 1,001,319 2,306,667 Bl
~ Total 17,874,186 9,011,869 | 20,760,000 | 150,210,600

x. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loan taken by others from a bank or financial institution and hence the provisions of
clause 3 (x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.  During the year, no term loans have been obtained by the Company. Hence, the provisions of
clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and considering the size and nature of the Company's operations, no fraud of material
significance on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For M.A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 107556W)

N

o,

Yy d

Mukul Patel
Partner
Membership No. 032489
Place: Mumbal

Date: 15" May, 2015
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rshi nfrastructure Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015
{Amount in ¥ )
Notes As at Year As at Year
3ist March, 2015 31st March, 2014
I Equity and Liabilities
1 Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 4 40,88,91,950 40,88,91,950
(b) Reserves and Surplus 5 (10,66,62,627) 93,52,20,707
30,22,29,323 1,34,41,12,657
2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 6 4,84,44,23,345 4,75,21,88,605
(b) Long Term Provisions 7 21,37,878 25,61,307
4,84,65,61,223 4,75,47,49,912
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 8 15,02,10,600 16,14,42,323
(b) Trade Payables ] 7,36,61,901 12,38,81,095
{c) Other Current Liabilities 10 1,24,73,08,927 55,87,00,377
{d) Short Term Provisions 7 3,49,37,881 6,76,57,258
1,50,61,19,309 91,16,81,053
Total G! 65!49!095855 750 1!D5!435622
II Assets
1 Non-Current Assets
{a) Fixed assets
i. Tangible Assets 11 6,06,83,14,756 6,44,77,29,779
ii. Intangible Assets 12 37,58,54,219 40,93,16,902
iii. Capital Work-in-Progress 2,07,64,914 2,07,64,914
6,46,49,33,889 6,87,78,11,595
(b) Non Current Investment i3 - -
(c) Long Term Loans and Advances 14 5,65,36,213 5,18,01,925
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 17 32,16,979 25,00,000
6,52,46,87,081 6,93,21,13,520
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 15 41,97,644 46,33,621
(b) Trade Receivables 16 2,84,25,591 6,13,81,313
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 17 3,56,23,197 72,67,693
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 14 6,10,60,242 51,13,264
(e) Other Current Assets 18 9,16,100 34,210
13,02,22,774 7,84,30,102
Total 6,65,49,09,855 7,01,05,43,622
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MA Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556“\!

W w(.ui’

:'"kul Patel Iﬂ MU“‘{M‘:;
artner ¥v
Mem. No. 32489 \\\ ’-"/j
LD ApCS 2 =
-n-‘.m

A\ i, '_L. o -.\\
Place: Mumbai [f<( R
Date: 15th May, 2015 EL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ajay S Mittal
Managing Director
DIN : 00226355

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

SOV, NI

N Otk wmoJONS
e ———————

—

-

Nawvnit Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576

vita Dalal
ompany Secretary



Arshi il Infrastr re Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March- 2015

(Amount in ¥)
Year ended Year ended

parfcuings NoteS  March 31,2015  March 31, 2014
Revenue:
I Revenue From Operations 19 2,38,23,90,187 1,93,34,75,399
II Other Income 20 1,53,11,157 2,70,39,653
III Total Revenue (I+II) 2,39,77,01,344 1,96,05,15,052
IV. Expenses:
Cost of Operations 21 2,11,79,24,760 1,79,43,27,083
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 7,49,04,705 8,91,02,948
Finance Cost 23 78,47,72,885 74,21,97,092
Depreciation and Amartization Expenses 11 &12 39,32,53,760 33,73,94,454
Other Expenses 24 7,14,46,108 14,97,59,839
Total Expenses 3!44!23!02!213 3,11,27,81,416
V (Loss) Before Exceptional Item & Taxes (III-IV) (1,04,46,00,875) (1,15,22,66,364)
VI Prior Period Expenses 37,34,828 -

VII (Loss) Before Prior Period Item & Taxes (V-VI) (1,04,83,35,703) (1,15,22,66,364)
r F r r r r r r

VIII Exceptional Items (Refer Note No. 45) (73,74,318) 88,10,26,074
IX Loss for the year (VII-VIII) (1,04,09,61,385) (2,03,32,92,438)
Earning per equity share:(refer note no. 28)
(1) Basic (25.46) (62.51)
(2) Diluted (25.46) (62.51)
Face value per share - Rs 10

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our repart of even date

For MA Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

8 A i

S Vi f /‘__,,_:.» = . . meugum
WX atisy” S EN E:\N”"\\ =t
st - 1A

Mukul Patel ( ;{&Muﬁﬁp{g '1) Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner e\ = Managing Director Director
Mem. No. 32489 I DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

—— e

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2015




hi ail Infrastructure Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2015

Particulars

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax

Adjustment for :

Depreciation/Amaortisation

Interest Income

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets

Fixed Assets Written off

Finance Expense

Sundry Balances Written back (net)

Bad debts written off

Provision for Dimunition in value of investments

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Movement in working capital

Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Provision
Increase/(decrease) in Lang Term Provision
Increase/(decrease) in Other Current Lliabilities
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivable
(Increase)/decrease in Long Term Loan and Advances
(Increase)/decrease in Short Term Loan and Advances
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/decrease in Other Currrent Assets

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITY

Taxes paid/{refund) nat

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets and addition to Capital werk-in-progress (net)
Capital Advances

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assels

Investment of Fixed Deposit in form of Margin Money

Interest Received

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Share Capital Issued

Proceeds from Share Premium on issue of Share Capital
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (net)
Proceeds/(Payment) from/of Short Term Borrowings (net)
Interest paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

Met increase/({decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year
(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes:

Year ended
March 31, 2015

{Amount in¥ )
Year ended
March 31, 2014

(1,04,09,61,385) (2,03,32,92,438)
39,41,75,710 33,73,94,454
(18,71,514) (25,07,430)
- 99,21,512
2,63,32,826 -
78,47,72,885 74,21,97,092
(1,21,85,034) -
- 86,81,94,690
- 5,00,000
15,02,63,489 (7,75,92,120)
(5,02,19,195) (30,50,85,504)
(3,27,19,377) 1,85,78,162
(4,23,429) (927)
5,88,27,828 1,96,17,925
3,29,55,722 43,70,86,796
(47,34,288) 5.24,50,981
(5,59,46,978) 1,69,67,738
4,35,977 23,20,071)
(8,81,890) -
9,75,57,858 15,97,02,980
(72,48,601)
9,75,57,858 15,24,54,379
(81,00,000) (32,76,85,303)
- 44,56,56,347
- 14,77,80,074
(7,16,979) 21,00,000
18,71,514 27,72,772
(69,45,465) 27,06,23,291
- 8,38,24,910
1,25,73,73,650

15,83,66,586

(1,12,31,723)
(20,93,91,753)

(52,07,48,255)
(38,84,88,393)
(86,27,45,908)

(6,22,56,890) (43,07,83,996)

2,83,55,503 {77,06,326)
72,67,693 1,49,74,019
3,56,23,197 72,67,693

a. Cash and Cash equivalents includes : Cash ¥ 20,02,901/- Bank Batance in Current Accounts ¥ 1,79,65,712/-

b. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in the Accounting standard 3
"Cash Flow Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

As per our report of even date

For MA Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556 W

/WG i

Mukul Patel (b7

Partner 4| MU}I}. )

Mem. No. 32489 =\ 7
" Y -_,

Place: Mumbal
Date: 15th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Q}\‘d\q\'\.&—j Nw—-————+M:_7_—U e

Ajay S Mittal Nawvnit Choudhary
o Managing Director Director
i o= MUMEBRI =l IN : 00226355 DIN ; 00613576
‘I"':"_-_- .,‘I
N~ ' aY’
' / vita Dalal

Company Secretary



Arshi il Infrastru imited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

1. Corporate Information

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL), a company
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In April 2008, AL acquired a
license to operate a pan-India rail service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL,
offering unprecedented rail infrastructure, including an abundance of modern rakes, customized
containers, new sidings, pan-India network, and superior connectivity. The company is engaged
in container train business and holding Category -I license which allows the company to operate
on Indian rail network on pan India basis both Domestic and Exim Traffic. Arshiya Rail’s unique
offerings provide unparalleled efficiencies with capability of large scale evacuation of cargo from
Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones and Customer Sidings.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP} under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, provision of the Act (to the extent notified).

These accounts are prepared by applying the “Going Concern” assumption based on future
business plans as referred in Note No. 37.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(i) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the year in which the results materialize/are known.

(ii) Fixed Assets

(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition/installation (net of cenvat credit
availed, if any) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except
land which is carried at cost. All costs including borrowing cost incurred during pre-
operational period till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized.
Land is carried at its revalued amount being the estimated market value based on
revaluation report.

(b) Intangible Fixed Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses. The capitalized cost of software includes license fees, cost of implementation
and system integration services. These costs are capitalized as intangible assets in
the year in which related software is implemented.

{c) Capital work-in-progress
The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost
comprising direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

(iii) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalised till the date of commencement of commercial operations as part
of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.




Arshiya Rail I structure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(iv) Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Tangible Assets

Depreciation on all Tangible Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method in
accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (Refer Note no. 42).

(b) Intangible Assets

(i)  Rail License fees paid for transfer of Concession Agreement is amortized over a
period of twenty years, being the license period as per the agreement.

(i) Software (intangible asset other than (iii) below), is amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of three to six years from the date of its implementation based on
management’s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use.

(iii) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (intangible asset) including
expenditure on implementation is amortised over a period of ten years based on
management’'s estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived
from its use,

(v) Leases

Operating lease

Assets taken on lease under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under
operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the
respective lease agreements,

(vi) Investments
Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisition are
classified as long term and are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the
value of long term investments is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.
(vii) Inventory
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.
(viii) Revenue Recognition:

a) Revenue from rail and ancillary operations are accounted on the basis of delivery of
cargo, considering substantial completion of contracted services. While recognizing
the revenue, 7" of the following month is taken as cutoff date for determining the
delivery of cargo vis-a-vis completion of contracted services

b) Revenue from Handling and allied services is recognized on the basis of loading/
unloading of container/cargo, considering the same as substantial completion of

contracted services.

c) Interest and Other Income are accounted for on accrual basis except where the
receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is accounted on receipt basis.

: )
[ ' .j." 1
{ MUMBAL ) =

A _}ﬂ fod

N5 %/ A




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(ix) Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment
entitlements.

a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution scheme such as provident fund are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when accrued.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The liability for Leave encashment and Gratuity is determined on actuarial basis as per
the Accounting Standard -15 “"Employee Benefits” (AS 15) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(x) Accounting for Taxes on Income

Taxes on Income are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard — 22 on
"Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS-22) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Tax expenses
comprise both Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to/recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax
rates. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are recognized, if required, for future tax
consequence attributable to timing difference between taxable income and accounting
income that are measured at relevant enacted tax rates.

(xi) Impairment

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be made
for impairment loss on fixed assets by considering the indications that an impairment
loss may have occurred in accordance with Accounting Standard - 28 “Impairment of
Assets” (AS-28) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(xii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions invelving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised
when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are
disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
Financial Statement.

(xiii) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed
and disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common
equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-
dilutive, 4 : .




Arshiya Rail Infrastr imi
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(xiv) Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements which presents the cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company.

(xv) Accounting policies not specifically referred to herein are in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the Company.
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rshiya Rail Infr i ed
MNotes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2015

4. Share Capital (Amount in 2 )
As at As at
31st March 2015  31st March 2014

Authorised
4,50,00,000 (4,50,00,000) Equity Shares of T10/- each 45,00,00,000 45,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid
40,889,195 (40,889,195) Equity Shares of T 10/- each 40,88,91,950 40,88,91,950

Total 40,88,91,950 40,88,91,950

(a) Terms/rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity

shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends to the shareholders who are holding the shares on
record date which is subject to the approval of the sharehelders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company in
the proportian to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(b} Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear

Equity Shares
As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Number (Amount In ¥ ) Number (Amount in ¥ )
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950 3,25,06,704 32,50,67,040
83,82,491 B,38,24,910

Issued during the year - o,
Balance at the closing of the year 4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950 4,08,89,195 40,88,91,950

(<) Shares held by the Holding /Fellow Subsidiary

(Number)
As at As at
31st March 2015  31st March 2014
Arshiya Limited (Holding Company )* 3,87,32,491 3,87,32,491
Arshiya Hongkong Limited (Fellow Subsidiary ) 21,56,704 21,56,704
Total 4,08,89,195 4,08,89,195
d ) Detail I Idin r he aggregal he co| ny
As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity Share of Rs 10/- fully paid up

Arshiya Limited (Holding Company )* 3,87,32,491 94.73 3,87,32,491 94.73
Arshiya Hongkong Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 21,56,704 5:27 21,56,704 5.27

Jotal 4.,08,89.,195 100.00 40889195 10000

* Notes :-
2. Shares held by the Holding Company include 200 shares fully paid up, held through declaration of beneficial interest as per section

B9 of the Companies Act, 2013.
b. As per the Records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.




5. Reserves & Surplus

(Amount in ¥ )

As at
31st March 2015

As at

31st March 2014

Securities Premium Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,36,03,48,442 1,10,29,74,792
Add . on issue of Shares during the year - 1,25,73,73,650
Balance as at close of the year 2,36,03,48,442 2,36,03,48,442
Revaluation Resarve 98,10,78,791 98,10,78,791
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year {2,40,62,06,526) (37,29,14,088)
Add: Loss for the year (1,04,09,61,385) (2,03,32,92,438)
Less: Adjustment for Depreciation (Refer Note No. 3(iv)) (9,21,950) -
Balance as at the end of the year (3,44,80,89,860) {2,40,62,06,526)
Total (10,66,62,627) 93,52,20,707
6. Long Term Borrowings {Amount in T )
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31st March 2015 31st March 2014

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

Secured (Refer Note No.35)
Term Loans from Banks

Term Loans 1,75,96,24,698 3,55,65,29,783 2,67,96,315 1,78,72,009
Funded Interest Term Loans {FITL) 43,86,95,643 77,00,33,445 89,52,972 77,77,234
Warking Capital Term Loans (WCTL) = 40,63,18,961 - 2,13.685,208
2,19,83,20,341  4,73,28,82,189 3,57,49,288 4,70,34,451
Others
Term Loans 1,76,15,89,981 - 2,68,26,243 =
Funded Interest Term Loans {FITL) 44,4467 496 - 90,70,765 -
Waorking Capital Term Loans (WCTL) 37,36,80,000 - 4,15,20,000 -
2,57,97,37,476 - 7,74,17,009 -
Unsecured
Inter Corporate Loan
From Holding Company 6,63,65,528 1,93,06,416 - -
6,63,65,528 1,93,06,416 = z
Total 4,84,44,23,345 4,75,21,88,605 11,31,66,297 4,70,34,451

(a) The Term loans are securad as under :-

I. First charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipments) and immovable
properties of the company, including intangibles assets.

ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets including receivables of the company.

iil. 100% equity shares of the Company held by Holding Company and Arshiya Honkong Limited to be pledge.

iv. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director, being Promoters of Holding
Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

(b) The Funded Interest Term loans are secured as under :-
i. First charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipments) and immovable
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets including receivables of the company.
lil. 100% equity shares of the Company held by Holding Company and Arshiva Honkong Limited to be pledge.
iv. Irrevocable and uncenditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director, being Promoters of Holding
Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

(c} The Working Capital Term loan is secured as under :-

i. First charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets including receivables of the company.
il. Second mortgage and charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipments) and
immovable assets of the company, including intanglbles assets.

i, 100% equity shares of the Company held by Holding Company and Arshiya Honkong Limited to be pledge.

Iv. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director, being Promoters of Holding
Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

(d}) Rate of Interest :
- on Term loans and Funded Interest Term Loans @ 15.25% p.a. upto March, 2016 and @ 16.25% thereafter.
- on Working Capital Term Loan @ 12% p.a.




(e) Repayment Schedule of Term loan and Funded Interest Term Loan from Banks as stated in CDR Letter of Approval

is as follows :-
{Amount in T )
Year Term Loan FITL
2014-2015 89,32,105 44 76,486
2015-2016 1,78,64,210 44,76,486
2016-2017 3,57,28,420 5,37,17,834
2017-2018 8,53,21,051 11,19,12,154
2018-2019 8,93,21,051 20,14,41,877
2019-2020 21,43,70,522 7.,16,23,779
2020-2021 25,00,98,542 =
2021-2022 25,00,98,942 -
2022-2023 26,79,63,152 -
2013-2024 27,68,95,257 -
2024-2025 28,58,27,362 =
Total 1,78,64,21,013 44,76,48,616

(f) Repayment Schedule of Term loan, Funded Interest Term Loam and Working Capital Term Loan from Others as stated in
CDR Letter of Approval Is as follows :-

Year Term Loan FITL Working Capital
Term Loan

2014-2015 89,42,081 45,35,383 2,07,60,000
2015-2016 1,78,84,162 45,35,383 2,07,60,000
2016-2017 3,57,68,324 5,44,24,591 2,07,60,000
2017-2018 8,94,20,811 11,33,84,565 4,15,20,000
2018-2019 8,94,20,811 20,40,92,217 4,15,20,000
2019-2020 21,46,09,947 7,25,66,122 12,45,60,000
2020-2021 25,03,78,271 = 14,53,20,000
2021-2022 25,03,78,271 - e
2022-2023 26,82,62,434 - -
2013-2024 27,72,04,515 - N
2024-2025 28,61, 46,596 = =

Total 1,78,84,16,224 45,35,38,261 41,52,00,000

(g) Details of continuing default in repayment of Principal amount of Term Loan and Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) of
Securad loans from Banks as on 31st March, 2015 Is as follows :-
(Amount in € )

Period of Default Term Loans FITL

Jul-14 9,92,456 4,97 387
Aug-14 9,92.456 4,97,387
Sep-14 9,922,456 4,97 387
Oct-14 9,92,456 4,97,387
Nov-14 9,922,456 4,97,387
Dec-14 9,92.456 4,97,387
Jan-15 9,892,456 4,97 387
Feb-15 9,92,456 4,97 387
Mar-15 9,92 456 4,97,387
Total 89,332,105 44, 76,486

(h) Details of continuing default in repayment of Principal amount of Term Loan, Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) and
Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) of Secured Loans from Others as on 31st March, 2015 is as follows :-

{Amount in T )

Period of Default Term Loans FITL WCTL

Jul-14 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Aug-14 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Sep-14 9,593,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Oct-14 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Nov-14 9,93,565 5.03,931 23,06,667
Dec-14 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Jan-15 9,593,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Feb-15 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Mar-15 9,93,565 5,03,931 23,06,667
Total 89,42,081 45,35,383 2,07,60,000

i} Inter Corporate Loan
Interest free quasi equity loan repayable after 12 months but before 5 years.




7. Provisions

(Amountin ¥ )

Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st Ma 'ch 3015 31st March 2014 31st March 2015  31st March 2014
Provision for Employee Benefits )
Leave Travel Aliowance - - 32,938,901 30,82,383
Gratuity = - - 7.57,925
Leave Encashment 21,37,878 25,61,307 4,91,165 5,14,555
21,37,878 25,611,307 37,90,066 43,54,863
Other Provisions
Frovision for Expenses = 3,11,47,815 6,33,02 395
= = 3,11,47,815 6,33,02,395
Total 21,37,878 25,61,307 3,49,37,881 6,76,57,258
8. Short Term Borrowings (Amount in T )
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Secured
Cash Credit from a Bank - 16,14,42,323
Other Short Term Borrowings . 15,02,10,600 .
Total 15,02,10,600 16,14,42,323

a) The Cash Credit loan is secured as under:-

1. First charge by way of Hypathecation of the entire current assets including recetvables of the campany.
ii. Secand mortgage and charge on all present and future movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipments) and

Immovable assets of the company, including Intangibles assets,
lil. 100% equity shares of the Company heid by Holding Company and Arshiya Honkong Limited to be pledge.

Iv. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantees from Director and a Relative of Director, being Promoters of Haiding

Company.

v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

b) Rate of Interest on Cash Credit Loan : 12.00% p.a.

c) The whole amount of other short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 150,210,600/- as on 31st March, 2015 is overdue.

9. Trade Payables

{Amount in ¥ )

As at

31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

Unsecured
Trade Payables*

7,36,61,501

12,38,81,095

Total

7,36,61,901

12,38,81,095

(* Refer Mote no, 32 for dues to Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises)

il




10. Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in T )

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrewings (refer note no. 6)

Loans from Banks:

Term Loans 2,67,96,315 1,78,72,009
FITL 89,52,972 77,77,234
WCTL - 2,13,85,208
Loans from Others:
Term Loans 2,68,26,243 -
FITL 90,70,765 -
WCTL 4,15,20,000 -
11,31,66,296 4,70,34,451
Interest Accrued and due:
On Term Loans from Banks 22,29,28,287 -
On FITL from Banks 6,29,44,342 1,74,25,074
On Term Loans from Others 22,06,63,209 -
On FITL from Banks from Dthers 5,54,62,909 =
On WCTL from Others 4,86,95,008 -
On Short Term Lean from Others 2,24,28,139
On Trade Payable (Secured) - 4,03,15,688
63,31,21,894 5,77,40,762
Statutory Liabilities
Tax Deducted at Source 96,48,211 5,03,00,903
Service Tax - 20,17,866
Provident Fund 242,022 1,43,466
Work Contract Tax 12,31,673 16,11,540
VAT - 4,71,775
Employee Professional Tax 5,800 12,405
Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues 79,58 410 1,50,25,078
1,90,86,116 6,95,83,033
Advance received from Customers 48,13,903 1,33,16,475
Other Liabilities
Project Creditors:
- Secured (Refer Note (a) below) - 21,25,00,000
- Unsecured 46,15,07,490 13,98,28,010
Security Deposit recelved 35,20,000 17,25,414
Employees Dues 1,20,93,228 1,69,72,232
47,71,20,718 37,10,25,656
Total 1,24,73.08,927 55,87,00,377

(a) Project Creditors {Secured):

i) Secured by pledge of 45 lacs equity share's of T 10 each of the Company held by its Helding Company.

ii} Rate of interest is 14% per annum from 1st April, 2013 to 30th September, 2013 and 13% per annum thereafter.

(b) Detail of unpaid Interest on Term Loans and FITL from Banks as on 31-03-2015 are as follows:

(Amount in T )

Period of Default Term Loans FITL
May-14 3,36,810 17,61,969
Jun-14 59,82,442 31,49,604
Jui-14 2,30,49,516 55,03,015
Aug-14 2,35,22,152 57,13,640
Sep-14 2,29,73,946 59,69,487
Oct-14 2,44,15,016 63,51,090
Nov-14 2,36,50,447 60,28,797
Dec-14 2,39,46,886 60,98,892
Jan-15 2,61,38,252 97,81,029
Feb-15 2,29,75,205 59,96,721
Mar-15 2,59,33,611 65,90,097

Total 22,29,28,287 6,29,44,341

(<) Detall of unpaid Interest on Short Term Loan, Long Term Loans,

FITL and WCTL from Others as on 31-03-2015 are as follows:

(Amount in %)

Period of Default Other Short Term Term Loans FITL WCTL
FY 2013-14 18,85,458 - 2
Apr-14 16,35,157 - = -

May-14 16,87,656 - 7,86,311 35,48,971
Jun-14 16,34,596 40,77,952 9,79,448 43,20,122
Jul-14 16,89,513 2,17,87,422 43,75,789 44,67,333
Aug-14 16,92,736 2,36,01,631 58,40,189 44,74,673
Sep-14 17,10,819 2,28,39,877 61,10,708 45,14,797
Oct-14 17,42,018 2,40,31,996 61,13,754 44,54,646
Nov-14 17,03,435 2,36,68,470 59,87,581 43,54,884
Dec-14 17,78,011 2,39,65,135 60,63,074 43,97,836
Jan-15 17,96,585 2,64,89,382 65,29,092 50,58,636
Feb-15 16,39,674 2,38,89,094 63,90,257 42,98,808
Mar-15 3 18,32 482 . 2,63,12 250 4=———=~ 62,85 807 48,04,302
Total zz,nﬁ,ﬁa,gm' s r--'-.-s;s}..f\z,gm 4,86,95,008

{ e G
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13. Non Current Investment

{Amount in ¥ )

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

(Trade and Ungquoted)

50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Arshiya Rail Siding Infrastructure Limited of Rs. 10 : %QQ,LDGD 5,00,000,
each, fully paid up* 1, ]
Less: Provision for Diminution In Value of Investments 5.00,000 5.00.000
Total - -

Note: Arshiya Rail Siding Infrastructure Limited is 100 % subsidiary of Arshiya Rail infrastructure Limited.
* {Refer Note No.:34)

14. Loans and Advances (Amountin® )

Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31st March 2015 31ist March 2014  31st March 2015

31st March 2014

Capital Advances

Unsecured, Considered Good 18,22.142 33,03,775 = -
18,22,142 33,03,775 = -
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good 1,08,27,512 1,27,31,046 = -
1,08,27,512 1,27,31,046 = -
Loan and Advances to Related Parties
Unsecurad, considered good ~ - 5,24,47, 785 4,620
- - 5,24,47,785 4,620
Trade Advance to Suppliers - 2 56,806,404 17,61,646
Unsecured, considered good - - 56,86,404 17,61,646
Other Loans and advances
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) %,18,34,894 3,57,67,104 -
Other Advances (Refer Note No. 44) - - 20,00,000 -
Advance to Employess - - 2,00,969 21,41,407
Prepaid Expenses = # 7,25,084 12,05,591
Service Tax Input Credit 20,51,665 * -’ e
4,38,86,559 3,57,67,104 29,26,053 33,46,998
Total 5,65,36,213 5,18,01,925 6,10,60,242 51,13,264
Details of balances of Loans and Advances to Related Parties are as follows ;- {Amount in¥ )
As at As at

31st March 2015

31st March 2014

Arshiya Industrial & Distnibution Hub Limited 1,87,44,783 4,620

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited - -

Arshiya Rall Sidings Infrastructure Limited 25,648

Arshiva Northern FTWZ Uimited 3,36,77,354 -
Total 5,24,47,785 4,620

15. Inventories

(Amount in T )

As at
31st March 2015

As ot
31st March 2014

Stores and Spares parts 41,897,644

46,33,621

Total 41,97,644

46,33,621

i6. Trade Receivables

(Amount in ¥ )

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

{Unsecured, considerad good)
Outstanding for a period

- axceeding six months from the date they became pavaile 1,60,572 77,58,159
- gthers 2,82,65,019 5,36,23,154
Total 2,84,25,591 6,13,81,313




17. Cash and Bank Balances

Non Current

{Amount inT)

Current

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

As at
31st March 2015

As at
31st March 2014

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Scheduled banks

In Current Accounts - - 1,79,65,712 44,20,479
Cash in Hand(As Certified by the 20,02,901 28,47,214
Management) " -
- = 1,99,68,613 72,67,693
Other Bank Balances
In Margin Money Deposit 32,16,979 25,00,000 1,56,54,584 -
{Pledged against Bank Guarantees/Letter of
Credit) 32,16,979 25,00,000 1,56,54,584 o
Total 32,16,979 25,00,000 3,56,23,197 72,67,693
18. Other Current Assets {Amount in T )
As at As at
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 4,79,275 34,210
Gratuity Fund (Net of Provision for Gratuity) 4,36,825 -
Total 9,16,100 34,210
19. Revenue from operations
Year Ended Year Ended
31 31st March 2014
Rail & Allied Services Income 2,38,23,90,187 1,93,34,75,399
Total 2,38,23,90,187 1,93,34,75,399
20. Other Income (Amount in T )
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2015 3ist March 2014
Interest Received :
- From Banks 7,31,809 12,57,342
- Others 11,39,705 12,50,088
Export Benefits - 1,50,96,723
Sundry Balances Written Back (net) 1,21,85,034 -
Miscellaneous Income 12,54,609 94,35 500
Total 1.53,11!157 2,70,39,653
21. Cost of Operations {Amount in ¥ )
Year Ended Year Ended
31ist March 2015 31st March 2014
Rail & Allied Services Charges / Expenses 2,11,79,24,760 1,79,43,27,083
[Refer Note No. 39)
Total 2,11,79,24,760 1,7%,43,27,083
22, Employee Benefits Expenses (Amount in T )
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2015  31st March 2014
Salary and Wages 7,30,14,046 B8,57,90,718
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 13,26,119 9,51,466
Gratuity - B,25,616
Employee Welfare and other amenities 5,64,540 15,35,148
Total 7,49,04,705 8,91,02 948




G ]

23. Finance Cost {(Amount in T )
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2015  31st March 2014
Interest Expenses 77,91,38,125 73,06,30,588
Interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 56,34,760 1,15,66,504
Total 78,47,72, 885 74,21,97,092
24, Other expenses (Amountin¥)
- As at Year Year Ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Electricity charges 6,664,242 18,02,407
Rent 1,49,53,654 2,11 44,458
Repairs and Maintenance i
- Building 26,90,387 59,91,557
- Others 739,781 6,79,686
Insurance 20,24,700 63,09,786
Rates & Taxes 3,86,671 4,04,020
Legal and Professional charges 2,01,30,288 1,22,13,220
Bad Debts 91,42,791 -
Claim Recoverable Written Off 8,44,784 3,21,54,688
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 9,450 3,74,800
Bank and Other charges 33,94,201 38,16,980
Communication expenses 18,64,505 18,71,376
Travelling and conveyance expenses 77,41,426 1,00,26,962
Vehicle expenses 13,34,949 24,87,692
Printing and stationery 3,38,169 4,93,050
Security charges 35,49.111 48,50,624
Audil n
- Audit feas 8,00,000 5,00,000
- Other Services 23,500 3,50,000
- Qut of Pocket Expenses 14,500 3,933
Miscellaneous expenses 7,98,999 2,28,628
Diminution in Value of Investments ; - 5,00,000
Sundry Balance Written off - 1,83,49,019
Service tax paid on demand - 1,52,8B5,442
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 99,21,512
Total 7,14 46,108 14,97,59,839




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

25.

a — Defined Contribution Plans

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit

and Loss:

(Amount in T)

Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund

[Includes Administrative Charges, EDLI charges and Employers’

Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995]

1,326,119

(951,466)

b - Defined Benefit Plan -Gratuity (Funded):

The following tables set out the status of Gratuity liability as required by AS-15.

{Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31° March, 315 March,
e ) il 2015 2014
I-Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets 9.00% 8.70%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
| Attrition rate B 15.00% | 10.00%
I1I- Change in Defined benefit obltgatlons. L
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 3,566,916 2,598,401
| Service Cost 1,125,294 1,029,640
 Interest Cost ; 316,360 207,872
| Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) ! Nil Nil
_Liability Transferred in/(out) o 1 Nil 142,899
Benefits Paid ~ (323,077) Nil
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (1,191,060) {411,896)
| Liability at the End of the Year L 3,494,433 3,566,916 |
III-Fair Value of Planned Assets: !
Fair value of Planned assets at the beaginning of the
| year 2,808,991 2,808,991
Expected Return on plan assets 230,328 | 244 382
Contributions Nil Nil
Transfer from other company B Nil Nil
Benefits Paid (323,077) Nil
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss 1,215,016 (244,382)
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the vear 3,931,258 2,808,991
| IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets B e [ R
Expected Return on Plan Asset o 230,328 244,382
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets 1,215,016 (244,382)
| Actual Return on Plan Assets B 1,445,344 Nii
V. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period _3/454,433 3,566,916
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 3 931,258 2,808,991
Difference (436,825) | 757,925
Unrecognized past service cost o Nil Nil
Liability/(Asset) recognized in balance sheet (436,825) 757,925
VI. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
Insured managed Fund | 100% | 100%
VII. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss |
Current Service Cost [ 1,125,294 | 1,029,640 |

B

— "‘_""T'L'_' _\,_I, e .K.."_.-_‘ I l‘l 4l ’.\
o) C g




shiya Rail Infrastructure Limit

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Interest Cost 316,360 207,872
Expected return on Plan Assets (230,328) (244,382)
Net Actuarial (gain) / loss to be recognized (2,406,076) (167,514)
Past Service cost Nil Nil
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss (1,194,750) 825,616
VIII. Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability 757,925 210,590
Expense/(Income) as Above (1,194,750) 825,616
Employers Contribution Nil Nil
Net Transfers to Other Companies Nil (142,899)
Closing Net Liability 436,825 757,925
IX .Expected Employers contribution in the Next vear
As per Actuarial Valuation report 289,782 | 1,783,127
X. Experience Adjustment
On Plan Liability (Gain) / Loss (1,412,381) (110,752)
On Plan Asset (Loss) / Gain 1,215,016 (244,382)
- Defined Benefit Plan -Leave Encashment (Unfunded):
' (Amount in %)
PARTICULARS As at As at
31°* March, 31* March,
2015 2014
1. Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Rate of Return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 15% 10.00%
I1. Change in Defined benefit obligations:
Liability at the Beginning of the Year 3,075,862 3,037,547
Service Cost 848,498 766,702
| Interest Cost 285,748 243,004
Liability Transferred in Nil 198,671
Liability transferred Qut Nil Mil
Past Service Cost (Vested and Non Vested benefits) Nil Nil
Curtailment P Nil Nil
Benefits Paid Nil (649,000)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (1,581,035) {521,062)
Liability at the End of the Year 2,629,073 3,075,862
I1I. Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of Planned assets at the beginning of the Nil Nil
year
Expected Return on plan assets Nil Nil
Contributions Nil Nil
Transfer from other company Nil Nil
Benefits Paid Nil Nil
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Nil Nil
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year Nil Nil
Total Actuarial gain/(Loss) to be Recognized Nil Nil
IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Assets Nil Nil
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets Nil Nil
Actual Return on Plan Assets Nil Nil

V. Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Liability at the end of the year

2,629,078 . 3,075,862
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Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year

Nil Nil

Difference 2,629,073 3,075,862
Unrecognized past service cost Nil Mil |

Liability recognized in balance sheet 2,629,073 3,075,862 |
VI. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of

. Profit and Loss !
Current Service Cost . 848,498 766,702 |
Interest Cost I~ 285,748 243,004
Expected return on Plan Assets Nil Mil |
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized (1,581,035) (521,062) |
Curtailment - Nil Nil
Past Service cost Nil Nil
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss (446,789) 488,644
VII Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability 3,075,862 3,037,547
Expense as Above (446,789) 488,644
Employers Contribution il (649,000) |
Met Transfers from Other Companies Nil 198,671
Closing Net Liability 12,629,073 3,075,862 |
VIII Experience Adjustments:
| On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss (1,769,709) 35,663 |

| On Plan Asset {Loss)/Gain il Mil |

26.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment information

The company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining
infrastructure facilities — Rail System, which consist of Pan India Rail Freight and allied
Operations. In the opinion of the company, the entire operations are governed by same set
of risk and returns and hence the same has been considered as representing the single

primary segment.

The company provides services within India and hence does not have any operation in

economic environments with different risk and returns.
company is eperating in single geographical segment.

Hence, it is considered that the

27.Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 - Related party disclosures:

(i) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have

taken place and relationships;

S.No | Name of Related Party

Relationship

| Arshiya Limited

Holding Company

Subsidiary

1
|2 | Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited
I & | Arshiya Hong Kong Limited

‘ | Arshiya Narthern FTWZ Limited

| Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited

| Arshiva Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

4 | Mr. Ajay S Mittal - Managing Director

| 5 5 M Ram_ut Ray

Ms. Savita Dalal

Key

Management
Personnel (KMP)

Chief Executive Officer
Company Secretary




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Note: The related party relationships have been determined by the Management on the

basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have been relied upon by the Auditor.

(ii) Summary of significant related party transactions (as identified by the Management) carried
out in the ordinary course of business are as follows:

(Amount in )

Transactions

Fellow Subsidiaries

Subsidiary

Holding Company

31-Mar-15

31-Mar-14

31-Mar-
i5

31-Mar-

14

31-Mar-15

31-Mar-14

Share Capital

Share Capital held as
at the beginning of
the year

21,567,040

21,567,040

387,324,910

303,500,000

Issue of Shares

during the year

(excluding securities
remium)

83,824,910

Share Capital held as
at the end of the
vear

21,567,040

21,567,040

387,324,910

387,324,910

Securities
Premium received
on shares issued
during the year

1,257,373,650

Loan Taken

Balance as at the
beginning of the year

19,306,416

1,735,121,618

Loan Taken during
the year

85,979,925

160,943,384

Loan
(Repaid)/(adjusted)
during the year

(38,920,814)

(539,196,572)

Utilisation of SFIS
Scheme

3,636,547

Issue of Equity
Shares including
Securities Premium

(1,341,198,560)

Balance as at the
end of the year

66,365,528

19,306,416

Land Advance
_given

Balance as at the
beginning of the year

399,257,629

Advance given
during the year

53,663,004

Assets received
/Advance adjusted
during the year

(1,215,219)

(295,861,640)

Advance adjusted
against loan

(103,395,989)

Balance as at the
end of the year

52,447,785




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Land Purchased > = z D - 238,370,826
Investment in Equity - - 500,000 | 500,000 - -
Shares -
Customs Duty i } i ; . 3536, 547
benefit availed
against 5FIS License
Corporate 300,000,000 300,000,000 - - - =
Guarantees
/Collateral Security
given
Corporate - - - -| 8,331,741,226 4,958,784,037
Guarantees
/Collateral Security
Taken

Remuneration Paid:

";':, Relationship 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

1 Chief Executive Officer 10,512,239 10,500,000

2 Company Secretary 612,242 650,000

28. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Computation of Earning Per Share
(Basic and Diluted) 2014-2015 2013-2014
Net (Loss) attributable to Shareholders () (1,040,961,385) | (2,033,292,438)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for basic 40,889,195 32,529,670
and diluted
Nominal Value per share (%) 10 10
Earning Per Share - Basic and diluted (%) (25.46) (62.51)

29, Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income:

According to the Company, the present business activity of containerized rail operations is
eligible for deductions under section 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for ten consecutive
assessment years falling within a period of twenty assessment years beginning with the
assessment year 2009-2010 i.e. the year, in which the company commenced commercial
operations.

In view of the loss for the year, no provision for taxation has been made.

In absence of virtual certainty of earning adequate taxable income in the foreseeable
future, Deferred Tax Asset for the year is not recognised.




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

30. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

{(Amount in )

2 As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2015 | 31* March, 2014
(a) Capital Goods under EPCG Scheme (Refer 268,697,480 250,104,211
Nate below)
(b) Bank Gaurantee -- 14,400,000
(¢} Income Tax Demand -- 1,512,140
{d) Maharashtra VAT Demand 72,22 914 77,22,914
(e) Letter of credit issued by banks (net of == 10,000,000
liabilities provided)
(f) Claims  Against the Company  not 36,965,172 323,713,601
acknowledged as Debt
(g) Right to recompense by Secured Lenders 57,700,000 19,800,000
(h) Guarantee to a Company in respect of loan 30,00,00,000 30,00,00,000
taken by a fellow subsidiary. (Refer Note
No. 43)

Note: The Company has procured certain Capital goods under EPCG Scheme at concessional
rates of duty. As on 31st March, 2015, the Company has a contingent liability to pay
differential Custom Duty along with interest thereon on such procurement on non fulfillment
of certain conditions. The Management is hopeful of completing the Export Obligation within
stipulated time and therefore it does not expect any cash outflow on this account.

31, Capital Projects:
a. The details of pre - operative expenses are as under:
(Amount in ¥)
As on As on

Nature of expenses 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Expenditure up to Pravious year = 38,166,837
Less: Amount allocated to fixed assets capitalized during the - 32,566,728
year.
Less ; Written off during the year = 5,600,109
Balance at the close of the year - =

32.

33.

Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure,
if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest payable as
required under the said act have not been given.

Operating Leases

The Company has taken on Lease Office Premises and Containers under cancellable
operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the
lessor and the lessee. Rental payments under such leases are ¥ 13,807,750 /- and ¥
57,805,223/- for the year ended 31 March, 2015 and 31 March, 2014 respectively.
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

34. Investments

The Management is of the opinion that, the decline in the value of Investment held by it in
Arshiya Rail Siding Infrastructure Limited (100% subsidiary) of ¥ 5,00,000/- is not
temporary and hence, the Company has fully provided for diminution in the value of
Investment.

35.

35.1

(a)

(b)

35.2

35.3

35.4

36.

Corporate Debt Restructuring(CDR)

During the previous year, Secured Lenders (Banks) have approved the restructuring
package under "Corporate Debt Restructuring Package” (CDR), which inter-alia provided
for:

(i) Reschedulement of the Principal amounts of the loans and dates thereof.
(ii) Funding of unpaid interest on the Term Loans from November 2012 to June 2014,
i. Waiver of all liquidated damages/penal charges/penal interest/excess interest i.e.
in excess of documented rate of all the facilities from the cut-off date 1%
November, 2012 till the implementation of the package.

A right to recompense in favour of Secured Lenders.

This year, the Company has not been able to generate sufficient cash flows to service
the loan repayments/interest payments which resulted into Company’s borrowings
becoming "Non Performing Assets” (NPA's) with the Banks.

Such defaults entitle the CDR lenders to reverse the waiver/sacrifices granted by them,
which is estimated to be ¥ 57,700,000/- as on 31% March, 2015.

During the year, certain lenders i.e. State Bank of India (SBI), State Bank of Patiala
(SBP), State Bank of Travancore (SBT), State Bank of Mysore (SBM) and South Indian
Bank who were part of the “Corporate Debt Restructuring” (CDR) have assigned their
respective outstanding loans and accrued interest thereon in favour of Edelweiss Asset
Reconstruction Company (EARC) on the same terms and conditions as applicable to
original lenders.

Provision for Interest

The Company has provided interest for the year:

(a) In respect of loans from banks, on the basis of statements received from them and in

absence thereof, as per the concessional rates (excluding penal interest) as mentioned in
Letter Of Approval (LOA) under the CDR.

(b) In respect of loans assigned to EARC, on the basis of balance confirmations received

from them.




Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

37.

38.

39.

40.

Future Business Plans

The Company’s revenue and margins have improved during the year on account of
stabilization of Rolling stock, operational efficiencies and expanded service offerings.

The Company has an established tie-up with key metal producers (contract period
between 3-5 years) for its container cargo movement operations in India.

The fawvourable consideration of the Company’s representation at various levels for
rationalization of haulage charges is expected to enhance its revenue and margins.

The Inland Container Depot (ICD) being set up by a fellow subsidiary is expected to
attract more containers, which shall fetch additional business for the Company.

The above steps shall enable the management to improve Company’s Net Worth and
its ability to discharge the debts / liabilities of the Company in near future. In view of
foregoing, the Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a “going
concern basis”,

Tax Deducted at Source
During the year,

(b) The Company had deducted income tax at source (TDS) aggregating to ¥
42,753,506/~ during the earlier years from the amounts payable to various parties.
The Company has not paid the said TDS to the government on assumption that such
parties would have paid their income tax dues on the income declared by them in the
respective years. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has transferred an
amount of ¥ 42,753,506/- back to the respective parties.

(c) The Company has written back an aggregate amount of ¥ 865,147/- representing
tax deducted at source on the premise that since the corresponding liability is not
payable to the parties, the tax deducted is also not payable

(d)The Company has written back an aggregate amount of T 9,922,277/-
representing interest on unpaid tax deducted at source provided in earlier years
on the premise that since the corresponding tax deducted is not payable as
mentioned in Note no. (a) & (b) above, interest thereon is not payable.

Containers taken on Lease

Rail and Allied Services Charges/Expenses include ¥ 23,904,574/- in respect of operating
lease for containers in terms of the settlement with the lessor of the containers.

Interest on Secured Creditors

An amount of ¥ 21,091,355/ representing interest provided on Secured Creditor in the
earlier years has been written back in terms of settlement reached with the party during

—

the year.

——
:




Arshi il Infrastructure Limited
I Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

41.

42,

43,

44.

45,

46.

Fixed Assets

In view of the size of current operations and the future business plans of the
Company, the carrying value of the Fixed Assets are not estimated to be lower than

the recoverable values and hence, no provision for impairment of Fixed Assets is
called for.

The Company has aligned its depreciation policy in accordance with Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 1% April, 2014 and has accordingly provided
depreciation based on revised respective useful life of the assets. Till previous year, the
Company provided depreciation on Straight Line Method basis as per the rates
prescribed in Schedule XIV of Companies Act, 1956. This change has resulted into
current year depreciation being higher by ¥ 101,182,601/-.

The company has mortgaged its land having an estimated market value of ¥
11,32,00,000/- as security against the loan of ¥ 30,00,00,000/- granted to its Fellow
Subsidiary, Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited. The outstanding amount of loan granted
(including interest accrued) to fellow subsidiary as on 31%' March, 2015 is ¥
13,06,49,239/-.

Other advances represents ¥ 20,00,000/- being cash seized by the Income Tax
Department at the time of search on 13th June, 2014, The company shall be lodging
necessary claim for refund of the same, as according to it;

(a) It was not a “person” under search under section 132 (1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961,

(b) The said cash on hand was duly accounted for in its books of accounts and tallied
with balance on hand as on date of search.

Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under: '
(Amount in T) |

Sr. | Exceptional items : : 2015 2014
No.
1 | Write back of Accrued Interest of (21,091,355) s
Secured Creditors (Refer Note No.
40) |
2 | Unpaid Balances written back X (2,693,512) ==
3 Interest on delayed payment of (9,922,277) |
TDS written back (Refer Note No.
38)
4 Fixed Assets Written off (Refer 26,332,826 --
Note No. 11(a))
| 5 Interest waiver on Restructuring 5E (22,074,280)
' of Secured Loans
6 | CWIP Write off = 34,905,664
7 Bad debts (net of Sundry Credit = 868,194,690

Balance Written off amounting to ¥

| 99,606,445/-)
’ Total (7,374,318) 881,026,074

The Company is of the view that the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013 as regards inter Company advances/loans/guarantees granted/received are not
applicable, as the same are provided/received in the normal course of business.
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

47. Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other legal
proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to them which are at different stages
before the respective judicial forums / authorities. Claims by the said lenders and
creditors have been contested by the Company in those proceedings and not
acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimate the financial
implications of such claims.

48. Outstanding balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade
Payables and Other liabilities other than due from/to Holding/Fellow Subsidiaries are
subject to confirmations. Adjustments, if any, shall be made in the accounts of the year
in which such differences are crystallised.

49, Previous year’'s figures have been regrouped, reclassified, rearranged and recasted
wherever necessary to conform to those of the current year.

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M, A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

A A x“ '~ N\ : M auncra ot
AW m ) v\\gﬂw iasa Sy

Mukul Patel S Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner ey Managing Director Director
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Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: 15" May, 2015
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M. A. PARIKH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To,
The Members of Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31+
March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.’

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

YUSUF BUILDING. 2vo FLOOR, 43, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, FORT, MUMBALI - 400 001.
TELEPHONE : 2204 1018 - 2204 3850 - 2202 9187 - FAX : 91-22-2287 4524 - E-MAIL : maparikh@eth.net



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2015;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profitand Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date;
and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,
in our opinion is not applicable to the Company.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.



e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

i, The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

MUKUL M. PATEL
Partner
Membership No. 32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15 May, 2015



* . ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

{Amount in )

As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

Ve
Sk -
Mukul Patel éx.,__,/

Fartner

Membership No.: 32489
Flace: Mumbai

Date : 15th May, 2015

Particulars Naot At A
ote 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share Capital 3 10,11,580 10,11,580
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 2,28,772 3,08,018
12,40,352 13,19,598
2. Current liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 5 63,448 59,551
63,448 59,551
TOTAL 13,03,800 13,79,149
I1 ASSETS
1. Current assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 13.03,800 3,79,149
(b) Short Term Loans & Advances 7 - 10,00,000
13,03,800 13,79,149
TOTAL 13,03,800 13,79,149
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
. See accompanying notes to the financial statements 3to 12

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

NauAs OIS v [
Navnit Choudhary Jacob
Director Director

DIN No:00613576 DIN No:06670062




ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015

{Amount in ¥)

For the yvear ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
INCOME
Other Income = -
Total Revenue - =
EXPENSES
Other Expenses 8 79,246 19,642
Total Expenses 79,246 19,642
Loss before prior period expenses (79,246) (19,642)
Prior period expenses - 27,263
Loss before tax (79,246) (46,905)
Loss for the year (79,246) (46,905)
Earning per Equity Share (nominal value of share Rs.10 each)
Basic & Diluted (0.78) (0.46)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements Jtol2

" As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107556W

mwﬁﬂ//

Mukul Patel

Partner

Membership No.: 32489
Place: Mumbai

Date : 15th May, 2015

{ R\ r'r
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/.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited

s O Auol M g
—_——

Navnit Choudhary

Director

DIN No:00613576

|

Binu Jacob
Director

DIN No:06670062




ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash flow statement for the year ended 315t March, 2015

(Amount in T)

P ol Year Ended 31st March | Year Ended 31st March
2015 2014
Cash Flow From Operating Activities (79,246) (46,903)
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustment for :
Operating Profit / (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes (79,246) (46,905)
Change in Current asseis and labilities
Decrease [ (increase) in Short term Loans and Advances 10,00,000 (10,00, 000y
Increase / (Decrease) in Short term liabilities - -
Increase / (Decrease) m Current liabilities 3,897 14,607
Cash Generated From / (Used In) Operating Activity 9,24,651 {10,32,298)
Taxes paid / TDS - -
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) 9,24,651 (10,32,298)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B) - -
Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents during the year {A+B) 9.24 651 {10,32,298)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.79.149 1411447
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,03,800 3,79,149
For M.A.Parikh & Ce. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W A ‘
W Clurara O s, '
WIS ==
/ Navait Choudhary Binu Jacob
Mukul Patel R Director Director
Partner {fﬁ / DIN No:00613576 DIN No:06670062
Membership No. 32489 I /
Place: Mumbai ks

Date ; 15th May, 2015
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ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31™ March 2015

Corporate Information

Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited 'the Company', incarporated on 26th October, 2007 to engage in the business of
providing planning,consultancy,training and implementation of logistics software products, electronics commercial solutions
and all kinds of information technology related support services and related consultancy services and providing any other
services in relation to the maintznance of such software,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Freparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of accounting and in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP™) and are in conformity with mandatory accounting
standards, as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as prescribed by the Central Government and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for
the year. The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or
materialized.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue from Sale of user licences for software application is recognsied on the transfer of the title of the user licences.
(ii) Revenue from consultancy services related to the information technology is recognised when the services are rendered,
upon completion of the actual service performed

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic eainings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during the yvear, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements which
presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to herein are in conformity with the generally aceepted accounting principles
followed by the Company.




ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Staterients for the year ended 31st March, 2015

{Amount in )

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3: Share Capital
Authorised
2.50,000 (Previeus Year 2,50,000) Equity shares of 10/- each 25,00,000 25,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
101,158 (Previous Year 1,01,158) Equity shares of 10/-each fully paid up 10,11,580 10,11,580
Total Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up share capital 10,11,580 10,11,580
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Equity Shares Equity Shares
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,001,158 10,11,580 101,158 10,11,580
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 1,001,158 10,11,580 1,01,158 10,11,580

b) Terms / rights attached to the equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote

per share.

In the event of iiquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by ihe

shareholders.

¢} Shares held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company

Agat Asat
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Equity Shares
1. 91,158 (previous year: 91,138) equity shares are held by the Holding Company viz 91,158 91,158
Cyberlog Technglogies International Pte Limited.
2. 10,000 fprevious year 10,000} equity shares are held by the ultimate Holding 10,000 10,000
Company viz Arshiya Limited
Total 1,01,158 1,001,158
d) Detals of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the company
As at As al
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Number % Mumber

Equity Shares
1 Cyberlog Technologies International Pte Lid (Holding 91,158 g0.11 91,158 8011
Company)
2, Arshiya Limited 10,000 9.89 10,000 9.89
{Ultimate Holding Company)

Tetal 1..1,158 100.00 1,01,158 100.00




ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

{Amount in ¥)
As at As at
31.03.2015 3L.03.2014
4: Reserves and Surplus
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at beginning of the wear 308018 3,54,923
Loss for the year (79,246) (46,903)
228772 308,018
Closing balance 2,18,772 3,08,018
5: Other Current Liabilities
Other Liabilitiy {Refer Note No. 11} 63,448 59.551
Total 63,448 59,551
6 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 104 104
Balances with banks 13,03,696 3,79.045
Total 13,03.800 3,79,149
7 : Short Term Loans and Advances
{Unsecured, considered good)
Share Apphzation Money (Refer Note No, 95 - 10,04, 000
Total - 10,00,000

For the vear ended

For the year ended

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
§: Other Expenses
Rales and Taxes ' 39,341 5,035
Legal and Professional charges 18,500 5618
Auditor's Remunaration - Audit fees 21,348 £,935
Miscelloneous Expenses 56 -
Total 79,246 19,642
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ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Related Party Disclosures:
List of Related Party

Ultimate holding Company
- Arshiya Limited

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) exercise significant control:

- Mega Management Services Private Limited
Key Management Personnel

- MNavnit Choudhary

- Binu Jacob

Transaction with Related Party:

Ultimate holding Company
As at As at
Nature of Transactions 31.63.2015 AL0320149
Reimbursement of Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 28,094 -
Amount Payable for reimbursement of Expense 28,094 -

Enterprises over which KMP exercise significant

control
As at As at
; 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
MNature of Transactions
Share Application Money Given 10,00,000 10,000,000
Share Application Money (during the year) 3.00,000 -
Kefund Received during the year 13,00,000 -
Outstanding as at year end - 10,000,000
Note: The above related enterprises have been identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
As at As at
Earnings per share (EPS) 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Profit/(Loss) alter tax (79.246) {46,905}
Averapge number of shares Outstanding 101,158 101,158
Face value per share (I8s.) 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS (0.78) (0.46)

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company has not received any intimation from "suppliers” regarding their status under the micro, small and medium
enterprises Development Act,2006 and hence the disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with

interest payable as required under the said Act have not been given.
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ARSHIYA TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Previous Year Figures
The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to current year's classification,

Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For M.A.Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 107556W f
N OWIACFAO M g -
4@{
/ W A Navnit Choudhary Binu Jacob
Mukul Patel o Director Director
Partner at DIN No:00613576 DIN No:06670062
Membership No.: 32489
Place: Mumbai

Date : 15th May, 2015




